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29 June 2023                                     

Ascent Resources plc

("Ascent" or the "Company")

Final Results

 

Ascent Resources  P lc (LO N: AST), the European and La!n American focused natural  resources  company, announces  i ts  final
results  for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Highlights:

·    Par!al ly solved partner disputes  in S lovenia to be able to recognise net revenue of €651k for hydrocarbons
produced and sold in 2020 and 2021

·    I ni!ated Slovenian arbitra!on proceedings  to seek payment of agreed but unpaid hydrocarbon revenues for 2022
as  wel l  as  to se3le difference in interpreta!on of the JV contract rela!ng to produc!on above the basel ine whi lst
Ascent is  in a  preferentia l  cost recovery mode (i .e. unti l  i t has  earned i ts  investment back)

·    Secured funding from special is t l i!ga!on and arbitra!on special is ts  Enyo Law LLP  via  a  damages-based agreement,
to pursue the Company's  Energy Charter Treaty damages cla im, ini!al ly es!mated to be in excess  of €500 mi l l ion,
against the Republ ic of S lovenia over their breaches  which have destroyed the value of the Company's  investment
in country
 

Corporate

·    Production of 1.16 mi l l ion scm of gas  and 37,855 l i tres  of condensate in 2022 from PG-10 and PG-11A wel ls
·    Focused ES G Metals  growth strategy on La!n and Hispanic America and advanced bus iness  development ac!vi!es

in Peru and Chi le, which are both countries  with a  long history in mining and mineral  process ing pos i!oning the
Company to execute on i ts  maiden metals  deal  shortly

·    Raised £1.2 mi l l ion in new equity by way of subscription and placing
 

Post Balance Sheet Events

·    Cons!tu!on of the Tribunal  under the I C S I D rules , in the Company's  €500+ mi l l ion EC T damages cla im against the
Republ ic of Slovenia and fi rst Tribunal  meeting held in Apri l  2023

·    Resolved partner dispute in S lovenia and received €1.7 mi l l ion rela!ng to produc!on from January 2022 through to
February 2023 and recognised €1.4 mi l l ion of produc!on related costs  which corresponds to a l l  outstanding
service provider costs  cla imed s ince 2019 through to February 2023, with the amount being paid being a  discount
of approximately 30% to the amounts  cla imed

·    Agreement to amend the monthly fixed fee to the S lovenian service provider from €40,000 per month to the higher of
€20,000 per month or 35% of Ascent S lovenia Limited's  en!tlement to monthly proceeds from the P G-10 and P G-
11A wel ls

·    I ndica!ve proposal  to acquire Amur Minerals  Limited, with the inten!on of combing their remaining avai lable cash
resource with Ascent's  advanced bus iness  development inventory in Peru and Chi le

Enquiries:

Ascent Resources plc

Andrew Dennan

Via Vigo Communications

 

WH Ireland, Nominated Adviser & Broker

James Joyce / Sarah Mather

0207 220 1666

Novum Securities, Joint Broker

John Bel l i ss

 

0207 399 9400

 

 

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Ascent Resources  plc has  been focused in recent years  on defending i ts  investment interests  fol lowing the Republ ic of
Slovenia's  ban on s!mula!on, effec!vely expropria!ng the Company's  flagship oi l  and gas  assets .  Having secured a



Slovenia's  ban on s!mula!on, effec!vely expropria!ng the Company's  flagship oi l  and gas  assets .  Having secured a
binding damages-based agreement, successful ly registered the cla im and very recently cons!tuted the Tribunal , the
arbitra!on process  is  now firmly in play. This  includes, a s  announced in August 2022, making a  formal  submiss ion of the
request for arbitra!on against the Republ ic of S lovenia, which included an updated prel iminary damages assessment in
excess  of €500 mi l l ion (i t should be cau!oned that in the event the Company is  successful  in i ts  cla im any amount actual ly
received by the Company may be s igni ficantly lower).  It a lso includes  the Tribunal  being consti tuted.

W hi lst these arbitra!on proceedings  a lone, we bel ieve, a l ready make Ascent Resources  plc a  unique and compel l ing
proposi!on for shareholders , the Company has  a lso been preparing for i ts  maiden ES G Metals/ ta i l ings  transac!on. 
Despite recent pol i!cal  turmoi l  in Peru, the company's  near-term focus  remains  on La!n America with i ts  deep-rooted
mining legacy and a3rac!vely priced opportunity set. O nce del ivered, the Company's  maiden transac!on is  expected to
provide balance to the porIol io, dovetai l ing in assets  that can exhibit sustainable and low risk cash flow genera!on with
the binary outcome of our poten!al ly highly materia l  cla im.  O ur recent intended bid for Amur Minerals  Corpora!on is  one
component of a  careful ly planned funding strategy for this  maiden transaction, which seeks  to minimises  equity di lution.

Gas  produc!on at the Pe!sovci  project in S lovenia has  con!nued with the P G-10 and P G-11A wel ls  producing a  total  of
1,164,500 scm of gas  during 2022. Despite s ignificant partner complexity in country, the Company received a net payment
of €651k in 2022 as  payment for hydrocarbon revenues related to the 2020 and 2021 produc!on years .  For the 2022
produc!on, a  further €1.3mi l l ion net revenue remains  outstanding at year end and due to the uncertainty of se3lement has
not been recognised in the 2022 financial  s tatements  (Note 1 - Revenue recogni!on). Accordingly in December 2022 AS L
ini!ated arbitra!on proceedings  to ensure i ts  partners  compl iance with i ts  obl iga!ons to pay owed amounts  from the P G-
10 and P G-11A wel ls  in addi!on to AS L's  cla im to receive, whi lst i t i s  in a  preferen!al  cost recovery mode (i .e. un!l  i t has
earnt back i ts  investment) i ts  share of produc!on above the basel ine produc!on profile for the other wel ls  on the
concess ion area. I n Apri l  2023, aKer the period in review the arbitra!on tribunal  has  been cons!tuted. The par!es  have
agreed AS L's  recogni!on of P G-10 and P G-11A hydrocarbons for January 2022 through to February 2023 which is  a  total
payment of €1.4m (net of VAT). The arbitra!on proceedings  in rela!on to AS L's  cla im for revenue from the other wel ls  took
place in mid-June 2023 and the Company awaits  the tribunal  decis ion shortly.

We thank our shareholders  for their pa!ence and ongoing support as  we con!nue to navigate the Company away from i ts
legacy S lovenian bus iness  and towards  the exci!ng opportuni!es  that we see elsewhere in ES G mining/tai l ings  whi lst
con!nuing to pursue our arbitra!on cla im. We look forward to upda!ng shareholders  on our progress  in what we bel ieve
wi l l  be a  very exci ting and rewarding year for Ascent shareholders .

STATEMENT FROM THE CEO

Legacy Slovenian Investment & ECT Damages Claim

2022 has  been a year of s ignificant change directly impac!ng the Company's  flagship project in S lovenia, with the
Government of S lovenia, in Apri l  2022, vo!ng to implement changes  to the country's  mining laws which, specific to the
Company, included a ban on the produc!on of hydrocarbons with the use of any form of s!mula!on which then came
quickly into effect in May. Given that the future development plans  of the Pe!sovci  field have always  included the use of
low volume hydraul ic s!mula!on (in conformity with the EU defini!on on s!mula!on levels ), which has  been conducted
some thirty or more !mes on the field during the last fiKy years ,  the ban has  now destroyed the ful l  economic value of
Ascent's  investment in S lovenia given that the Company wi l l  now no longer be able to execute the field development plan to
be able to produce the 400+bcf discovered gas  in place in the !ght rock reservoirs . As  such, the Company undertook a
review of the Pe!sovci  field at the end of the year and recognis ing that the economic value had been substan!al ly
destroyed, took the decis ion to recognise a  100% write down of the historical  P P E and capital ised explora!on costs
total l ing £39.7m.

The Company responded quickly to these law changes  and served the Republ ic of S lovenia ("Slovenia" or "the State") with a
new no!ce of dispute of further breaches  under the UK-Slovenia bi lateral  investment treaty ("B I T") and the Energy Charter
Treaty ('EC T') on 5 May 2022. The Company then entered into a  binding damages agreement, appoin!ng Enyo Law LLP  to
represent i t in i ts  dispute with the State, as  announced on 30 May 2022. Enyo Law LLP  is  a  specia l is t arbitra!on and
l i!ga!on legal  firm who filed both of the No!ces  of Disputes  on behalf of the Company and who represented the Company
in 2021's  pre-arbitra!on nego!a!ons with the Republ ic of S lovenia. O n 15 August 2022, the Company formal ly ini!ated
arbitra!on proceedings  against the Republ ic of S lovenia with a  revised monetary damages cla im in excess  of €500 mi l l ion,
which was accepted and successful ly registered by the I nterna!onal  Centre for Se3lement of I nvestment Disputes  ("I C S I D")
on 1 September 2022. I t should be cau!oned that in the event the Company is  successful  in i ts  cla im any amount actual ly
received by the Company may be s igni ficantly lower.

The Company appointed Mr K laus  Reichert (German/I rish) as  i ts  arbitrator in November 2022. Mr Reichert i s  a  very
experienced arbitrator having par!cipated in over 250 disputes. I n December 2022, S lovenia appointed Ms Brigi3e Stern, a
French professor and experienced arbitrator. Post period end Dr Raed Fathal lah (Canadian, French, Lebanese) was
appointed as  pres ident arbitrator and accordingly on 7 March 2023 the Tribunal  was  cons!tuted in accordance with
Ar!cle 37(2)(a) of the I C S I D Conven!on.  Fol lowing a procedural  first sess ion in Apri l  2023 the case wi l l  con!nue to
progress  through the structured arbitra!on process . I t should be cau!oned that in the event the Company is  successful  in
i ts  cla im any amount actual ly received by the Company may be s igni ficantly lower.

The cla im results  from what the Board bel ieve to be a popul ist campaign carried out by S lovenia against the Company and
its  investment, which has  prevented the development of the Pe!šovci  oi l  and gas  field. I n par!cular, S lovenia has  prevented
the res!mula!on of two wel ls  (P G-10 and P G-11A) in 2017, which was necessary to maintain the levels  of gas  produced
from the !ght rock reservoir (as  has  been done mul!ple !mes over the last fiKy years). This  frustra!on of the abi l i ty to
develop the field was  ini!ated via  a  decis ion of the State's  regulator, the S lovenian Environment Agency ("ARS O "), which
determined that an Environmental  I mpact Assessment ("EI A") would be required to be approved in order to conduct the low-
volume hydraul ic s!mula!on, even though such an EI A was not required and never had been previous ly under S lovenian
law, and ARS O 's  conclus ion was contrary to the conclus ion of S lovenia's  own expert bodies . This  decis ion s ignificantly
s lowed down the development of the field by the Company. Pending such low-volume hydraul ic s!mula!on, the amount of
gas  produced by the field was  very s igni ficantly reduced, resulting in a  s igni ficant loss  of the Company's  revenues.

At the same !me, the Minister of the Environment and Spa!al  P lanning of S lovenia repeatedly made publ ic statements
portraying Ascent, as  wel l  as  the Pe!šovci  project, in a  nega!ve l ight, and the Company bel ieves  that leaks  were made by
ARS O  to the press . This  further demonstrates  that ARS O  was biased against the Company and that the ARS O 's  decis ion was
pol i!cal ly mo!vated. S lovenia's  campaign against the investors  culminated in a  complete ban on low-volume hydraul ic
s!mula!on, which came into effect on 5 May 2022. The Board bel ieves  that statements  made during the parl iamentary
debate on the ban leave no doubt that the I nvestors  were being specifical ly targeted by i t. This  has  leK Ascent with no
choice but to execute on i ts  cla im in rela!on to S lovenia's  measures  that have destroyed the value of Ascent's  investments
in the S lovenian energy sector, and which have de facto deprived Ascent of i ts  right to produce gas  in S lovenia. Ascent's
rights  have been unlawful ly expropriated by S lovenia, in breach of the country's  obl iga!ons under interna!onal  law and
both the EC T and the B I T. The Company has  therefore sustained losses  for which i t i s  seeking compensa!on. The Company
remains  amenable to discuss ing se3lement with the Republ ic of S lovenia fol lowing i ts  review of the ma3er or otherwise
pursuing this  s igni ficant damages cla im through to a  binding result for the Company.

Slovenia Operational Update

Throughout the year the wel ls  in the concess ion area have con!nued to produce smal l  volumes of gas  into the buoyant gas
market with sales  con!nuing to local  industria l  buyers  through the low pressure pipel ine. Total  produc!on from the P G-10
and PG-11A wel ls  in 2022 was 1.1 mi l l ion scm of gas  and 37,855 l i tres  of condensate and the average real ised gas  price for
this  produc!on was €125/M W h, resul!ng in net invoiceable hydrocarbon revenues of €1.3 mi l l ion due to AS L from the
PG10 and PG11A wel ls  only.

The Company's  subs idiary, Ascent S lovenia Limited ("AS L"), con!nued to manage the ongoing disputes  with i ts  joint venture
("JV") partner Geoenergo as  wel l  as  the JV's  service provider Petrol  Geo. (Geoenergo is  50% owned by NaKa Lendava which
is  a  100% Slovenian government control led en!ty and 50% owned by Petrol  which is  a  publ icly l i s ted 30% Slovenia State
control led company, Petrol  Geo is  a  connected party by vi rtue of being a  100% subs idiary of Petrol ). W hi lst these disputes
resulted in a  con!nuing commercial  s ta lemate throughout the period under review, AS L made some progress  when in



control led company, Petrol  Geo is  a  connected party by vi rtue of being a  100% subs idiary of Petrol ). W hi lst these disputes
resulted in a  con!nuing commercial  s ta lemate throughout the period under review, AS L made some progress  when in
August 2022 i t was  able to agree recogni!on of payment for the outstanding hydrocarbon sales  proceeds from the P G-10
and P G-11A wel ls  for the period Apri l  2020 through to December 2021 which was a  total  gross  sum of €832k. As  part of the
agreements  with Geoenergo for Ascent to receive these proceeds, AS L a lso agreed to recognise costs  of €181k which
Geoenergo cla ims to have paid in rela!on to the concess ion extens ion, as  a  result the Company received a net payment of
€651k in August 2022. AS L was  a lso successful  in agreeing i ts  share of the P G-10 and P G-11A revenues for the first hal f of
2022 amoun!ng to €857k, however despite Geoenergo's  prior confirma!on that they would make this  outstanding and
owed payment in August as  wel l , at the financial  year end this  amount was  s!l l  outstanding as  is  the amount for the
invoices  ra ised and sent through the second hal f of 2022.

The revenue recogni!on dispute has  been through a media!on process  in September 2022, fol lowing which in December
2022 the Company raised some new equity proceeds to lodge i ts  arbitra!on cla im against Geoenergo in pursuit of a
binding and enforceable resolu!on to this  ma3er as  wel l  as  resolu!on over AS L and Geoenergo's  different interpreta!ons
of the joint venture contract rela!ng to AS L's  en!tlement to hydrocarbons produced above a contractual  base l ine
performance profile whi lst AS L is  in a  preferen!al  cost recovery mode (i .e. un!l  i t has  earnt i ts  investment back). The
arbitra!on is  in process  and has  a  long stop date, according to the Ljubl jana Arbitra!on Centre rules , of 26 O ctober 2023
to reach a binding result. The Company expects  to make meaningful  progress  on this  cla im in the summer months  of 2023,
with the Company and i ts  in country legal  advisors  remaining confident in the merits  of AS L's  cla ims which seek payment
for in excess  of €3 mi l l ion from Geoenergo over the last three years . The tribunal  hearing to decide on en!tlement
happened in June 2023 and the decis ion is  expected to be rendered shortly.  Separately, Petrol  Geo had a cla im against the
joint venture over monthly fixed fee service invoices  which the joint venture has  rejected s ince Apri l  2020 un!l  February
2023 based on a s ignificant change in ci rcumstances. At the financial  year end, Petrol  Geo were cla iming a total  sum of
approximately €1.7 mi l l ion is  owed by the joint venture in rejected monthly invoices . Post period under review, the JV and
Petrol  Geo entered into a  dispute media!on process , which in Apri l  2023 resulted in a  mutual ly agreed resolu!on to this
ma3er. Petrol  Geo's  cla ims against the JV over disputed and rejected invoices  cla imed s ince 2019 through to February
2023, total l ing €2,083,491 (plus  cla imed interests  and costs), were agreed to be se3led for €1,436,000, represen!ng a
discount of approximately 30% to the face value. For the year under review €501,000 (net) of this  se3lement amount has
been recognised against the 2020 and 2021 revenue noted above. Furthermore, the JV successful ly renego!ated a reduc!on
in Petrol  Geo's  fixed fee un!l  the concess ion expira!on in November 2023 to the higher of i ) €20,000 per month, being a
55% discount to the prior fee level ; or i i ) 35% of AS L's  share of the hydrocarbons produced from the P G-10 and P G-11A
wel ls . The previous  fee was a  fixed €44,000 per month, which was unstainable when the gas  prices  were lower and as
production levels  continue to natural ly decl ine.

Post the year end, S lovenia has  approved new amendments  to i ts  mining concess ion legis la!on which proposes  to give
automa!c 30 months  extens ions  to those concess ions  which are due to expire in 2023 and 2024. Accordingly, the
concess ion was previous ly due to expire on 28 November 2023 and is  now expected, upon submiss ion by Geoenergo of the
relevant information, to be extended to 28 May 2026.

New Environment, Social & Governance ('ESG') Metals Strategy

The Company remains  very focused on execu!ng on i ts  new ES G Metals  growth strategy and confirmed this  during the year
announcing that whi lst the Company con!nues to evaluate a  number of ES G Metal  transac!ons across  La!n and Hispanic
America, i t has  iden!fied Peru as  a  primary target geography. Peru is  widely recognised as  one of the largest and most
divers ified mineral  producers  with some of the most extens ive reserves  in the world with mining the most important sector
in the Peruvian economy (some 10% of na!onal  GD P ).   Peru is  currently the world's  second largest Copper, S i lver and Zinc
producer and La!n America's  largest Gold, Zinc, Tin and Lead producer. Peru's  Long-Term Credit Ra!ng is  rated as  BBB by
most agencies , which is  amongst the strongest in the region.  The country a lso benefits  from a long history of mining, a
robust mining legal  framework and a s ignificant pool  of local  exper!se. S imi larly, a  lot of these trai ts  are shared by
neighbouring Chi le, which is  the world's  largest Copper producer and has  a  long history or mining and mineral  process ing
giving rise to large accumulations  of surface stockpi led materia ls  cons istent with the Company's  ESG Metals  strategy.

The Company sees  s ignificant opportunity for a3rac!ve entry points  in mining fol lowing the global  pandemic which has
triggered interna!onal  capital  flight and s ignificant capital  constraints  for smal l -scale miners .  The Company therefore
ini!al ly expects  to focus  i ts  a3en!on on smal l -scale opera!ons (up to 350 tpd), which the Company cons iders  affordable,
of an efficient opera!onal  and commercial  scale and which have mul!ple local  opera!ng and permiSng benefits . The
Company is  ac!vely developing a  number of poten!al  transac!ons in the gold ta i l ing re-process ing and ar!sanal  gold ore
process ing theme, however given the pol i!cal  disrup!on in Peru towards  the end of 2022 and beginning of 2023, the
Company expects  i ts  first transac!on in ES G Metals  may be in a  neighbouring terri tory, with the expecta!on that a  new
country entry to Peru focused on precious  metals  would sti l l  materia l ise in the Company's  near future.

Corporate & Funding

The Board have con!nued to manage costs  and rela!onships  with JV par!es  whi le i ts  legacy disputes  con!nue to be
resolved, managing various  historical  outstanding balances  and rais ing addi!onal  funds  to enable the pursuit of the
Company's  damages cla im against S lovenia, i ts  S lovenian JV partner and for the new ES G Metals  ini!a!ves. The Company
successful ly funded i ts  s ignificant monetary damages cla im against S lovenia through the damages-based agreement to
appoint Enyo Law LLP  to represent i t. Consequently the Company remains  pos i!oned as  a  clean vehicle with a  strong Board,
access  to capital , a  funded s igni ficant damages cla im and a clear growth trajectory.

I n January 2022, in support of the Company focus ing i ts  ES G Metal  strategy on La!n America, the Company successful ly
raised new gross  equity proceeds of £0.6 mi l l ion to fund working capital  requirements  and wider bus iness  development
ac!vity at a  price of 3.3 pence per new share, which represented a ni l  discount to the clos ing bid price on the prior day. The
subscribers  received one new equity warrant per new share subscribed for, with the warrant being exercisable at 5p per
warrant share at any !me in the next two years . I n Apri l  2022, the Company agreed with the holders  of the remaining 4p
equity warrants  that were issued on 6 August 2020 to an immediate warrant exercise whereby al l  4p warrants  were
exercised, real is ing new equity proceeds of £242,500 for the Company. I n exchange for this  accelerated warrant exercise,
the Company awarded one and hal f new warrants  for each warrant exercised, with each new warrant being exercisable at
5p per new warrant at any !me over the next three years . I n December the Company successful ly ra ised new equity
proceeds of £0.6 mi l l ion by way of i ssue of 15 mi l l ion new shares  at 4p, being the clos ing bid price on the night before.
Each placing share was issued with a  warrant at 5p.

Alongs ide the December 2022 placing, the Company agreed with i ts  only lender, RiverFort, to restructure i ts  debts  and to
repay £50,000 of the total  outstanding payment obl iga!ons of £561,620, with £25,000 in cash plus  £25,000 which wi l l  be
sa!sfied with the issue of 625,000 new shares. The remaining balance of £511,620 was re-profiled such that i t wi l l  incur a
coupon of 8 per cent and now be redeemable in s ix equal  cash instalments  of £92,091.60 as  of 14 September 2023 and
monthly thereafter with final  payment on 14 February 2024.

Addi!onal ly, the Company was successful  in recognis ing some revenue in the 2022 financial  year with receipt of a  net
payment (aKer certain concess ion related costs) of €651k in August 2022. Post the year end the Company also recognised
€1,724,689 of revenue for January 2022 through to February 2023, against which i t a lso agreed to acknowledge and pay the
discounted amount of €1,436,000 to Petrol  Geo in ful l  and final  payment of a l l  amounts  cla imed to be owed and
outstanding s ince 2019 to February 2023. Post the year end the Company therefore received net cash payment of €288,689
as  a  result of a  successful  media!on process  involving the nego!a!on of a  discount to historic and future fixed process ing
costs  being charged by Petrol  Geo.

I n February 2022, Mr Ewen Ainsworth stepped down from his  pos i!on as  Non-Execu!ve Director fol lowing his  acceptance
of a  ful l -!me execu!ve pos i!on elsewhere. I n December 2022 the Company appointed Mr Marco Fumagal l i  to the Board.
Marco is  a  Founding Partner at Con!nental  I nvestment Partners  SA, a  Swiss-based investment fund. Marco is  a  wel l -known
I tal ian bus inessman and industria l  investor who was previous ly a  group partner at 3i . He is  a  qual ified accountant and
holds  a  degree in bus iness  administra!on from Bocconi  Univers i ty in Mi lan and has  many years ' experience as  an AI M
company director. Subsequently, Marco became Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Post the year end, the Company has  ra ised £400k through a placing of new shares  at 3p (being the spot price on the day
before announcement) with a  one for one warrant a3ached that i s  exercisable at 5p per new warrant share. Addi!onal ly



before announcement) with a  one for one warrant a3ached that i s  exercisable at 5p per new warrant share. Addi!onal ly
the Company is  pursuing a  cla im to recognise i ts  share of the hydrocarbons produced in the concess ion area above the
basel ine produc!on profile and i f successful  expects  to be able to recognise further revenues of ci rca €3+ mi l l ion over the
last three years .

Summary

The Company has  gained trac!on with i ts  S lovenian opera!onal  disputes  and recogni!on of revenue for the first !me in
several  years , a longs ide pos i!oning i ts  shareholders  with exposure to a  funded s ignificant monetary damages cla im, in
excess  of €500 mi l l ion, against the Republ ic of S lovenia under the Energy Charter Treaty (i t should be cau!oned that in the
event the Company is  successful  in i ts  cla im any amount actual ly received by the Company may be s ignificantly lower) and
is  wel l  placed to complete on i ts  continuing ESG Metals  bus iness  development activi ty during the 2023 financial  year.

James Parsons
Executive Chairman

Andrew Dennan
Chief Executive Officer

 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes

Year Ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year Ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

Revenue 2 581 -
Cost of Sales 2 (504) (19)
Depreciation of oi l  & gas  assets 10 (214) (328)
Gross loss (137) (347)

 
Administrative expenses 3 (1,472) (1,596)
Decommiss ioning provis ion 16 (326) -
Goodwi l l  impairment 9 (203) -
Impairment expenses 10,11,12 (39,721) -

Operating loss (41,859) (1,943)
 

Finance cost 5 (32) (28)
Net finance costs (32) (28)

 

Loss before taxation (41,891) (1,971)
 

Income tax expense 6 - -
Loss for the year (41,891) (1,971)

 
Other comprehensive income  
Items that may be reclass i fied to profi t and loss  
Exchange di fferences  on trans lation of foreign operations 318 (1,621)
Total comprehensive income for the year (41,573) (3,592)

 
Earnings per share  
Basic & ful ly di luted loss  per share (Pence) 8 (31.87) (1.83)

The consol idated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Assets Notes

31 December
2022

£'000s

31 December
2021

£'000s
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 4 21,111
Exploration and evaluation assets 11 - 18,463
Goodwi l l 9 - 653
Prepaid abandonment fund 13 300 300
Total non-current assets 304 40,527
Current Assets  
Trade and other receivables 13 11 8
Cash and cash equivalents 25 325 97
Total current assets 336 105

Total assets 640 40,632

Equity and liabilities  



Attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company  
Share capital 20 8,214 7,998
Share premium account 76,298 75,021
Merger reserve 570 570
Share-based payment reserve 24 2,131 2,129
Trans lation reserve (276) (594)
Retained earnings (88,457) (46,566)
Total equity attributable to the shareholders (1,520) 35,558
Total equity (1,520) 35,558

Non-current liabilities  
Borrowings 15 516 536
Provis ions 16 663 312
Total non-current liabilities 1,179 848
Current liabilities  
Borrowings 15 5 5
Contingent cons ideration on acquis i tion 17 - 450
Trade and other payables 18 976 771
Total current liabilities 981 1,226

Total liabilities 2,160 2,074

Total equity and liabilities 640 40,632

The consol idated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

 
 
 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

 

Share
capital
£'000s

Share
premium

£'000s

Merger
reserve
£'000s

Equity
reserve
£'000s

Share
base

payment
reserve
£'000s

Translation
reserve
£'000s

Retained
earnings

£'000s
Total

£'000s
Balance as at 1 January 2021 7,928 73,863 570 73 2,129 1,027 (44,595) 40,995
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - - (1,971) (1,971)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation
differences

- - - - - (1,621) - (1,621)

Total comprehensive income - - - - - (1,621) (1,971) (3,592)
Transactions with owners
Issue of ordinary shares 70 1,216 - - - - - 1,286
Costs related to share issues - (58) - - - - - (58)
Equity value of convertible
loan

- - - (73) - - - (73)

Total transactions with owners 70 1,158 - (73) - - - 1,155
Balance at 31 December 2021 7,998 75,021 570 - 2,129 (594) (46,566) 38,558
Balance at 1 January 2022 7,998 75,021 570 - 2,129 (594) (46,566) 38,558
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - - (41,891) (41,891)
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation
differences

- - - - - 318 - 318

Total comprehensive income - - - - - 318 (41,891) (41,573)
Transactions with owners
Issue of ordinary shares 216 1,366 - - - - - 1,582
Costs related to share issues - (89) - - - - - (89)
Share-based payments - - - - 2 - - 2
Total transactions with owners 216 1,277 - - 2 - - 1,495
Balance at 31 December 2022 8,214 76,298 570 - 2,131 (276) (88,457) (1,520)

The consol idated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

 

 
 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s



£'000s £'000s
Cash flows from operations
Loss  after tax for the year (41,891) (1,971)
Depreciation 214 328
Impairment of PPE and exploration asset 39,721 -
Goodwi l l  impairment 203 -
Decommiss ioning provis ion 326 -
Change in receivables 3 42
Change in payables 205 75
Increase in share-based payments 2 12
Exchange di fferences 6 42
Net cash used in operating activities (1,211) (1,472)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments  from fixed assets (1) (3)
Net cash used in investing activities (1) (3)

Cash flows from financing activities
Loans  advanced - 375
Loans repaid (20) -
Interest paid (32) -
Proceeds from issue of shares 1,581 1,140
Share issue costs (89) (58)
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,440 1,457
 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents for the year 228 (18)
Effect of foreign exchange di fferences - -
Cash and cash equivalents  at beginning of the year 97 115
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 325 97

The consol idated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

 
Notes to the Financial Statements
Reporting entity

Ascent Resources  plc (Company no: 05239285) ('the Company' or 'Ascent') i s  a  company domici led and incorporated in
England. The address  of the Company's  registered office is  5 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3TW. The consol idated
financial  s tatements  of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the Company and i ts  subs idiaries
(together referred to as  the 'Group'). The Parent Company financial  s tatements  present informa!on about the Company as  a
separate enti ty and not about i ts  Group.

The Company is  admitted to AIM, a  market of the London Stock Exchange.

Statement of compliance

The financial  s tatements  of the Group and Company have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted interna!onal
accounting standards  and with the requirements  of the Companies  Act 2006.

The Group's  and Company's  financial  s tatements  for the year ended 31 December 2022 were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors  on 28 June 2023 and the Statements  of F inancial  Pos i!on were s igned on behalf of the
Board by James Parsons.

Both the Parent Company financial  s tatements  and the Group financial  s tatements  give a  true and fa ir view and have been
prepared and approved by the Directors  in accordance with UK-adopted interna!onal  accoun!ng standards  and with the
requirements  of the Companies  Act 2006.

Basis of preparation

I n publ ishing the Parent Company financial  s tatements  here together with the Group financial  s tatements , the Company is
taking advantage of the exemp!on in Sec!on 408 of the Companies  Act 2006 not to present i ts  individual  income statement
and related notes  that form a part of these approved financial  s tatements . The Company loss  for the year was  £44,159,000
(2021: loss  of £1,550,000).

The presenta!onal  currency of the Group is  Bri!sh Pounds S!rl ing ("GBP ") and the func!onal  currency of the Group's
subs idiaries  domici led outs ide of the UK in Malta, Slovenia and Netherlands  are in Euros  ("EUR").

Measurement Convention

The financial  s tatements  have been prepared under the historical  cost conven!on. The financial  s tatements  are presented
in sterl ing and have been rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000s) except where otherwise indicated.

The principal  accounting pol icies  set out below have been cons istently appl ied to a l l  periods  presented.

Going Concern

The Group and Company financial  s tatements  have been prepared under the going concern assump!on, which presumes
that the Group and Company wi l l  be able to meet i ts  obl igations  as  they fa l l  due for the foreseeable future.

The Company has  ra ised £0.4 mi l l ion in new equity s ince the balance sheet date from new and exis!ng investors  and has
se3led revenue disputes  with i ts  JV partner and se3led invoice disputes  with i ts  JV operator such that a  net €288,000 was
received by the Company. Under the Group's  forecasts , the funds  raised together with exis!ng bank balances  provide
sufficient funding for at least two months, as  of the date of the publ ication of this  report, based on anticipated outgoings.

In addition to the need to raise additional  funding in the next two months, the forecasts  are sens itive to the timing and cash
flows associated with the con!nuing s i tua!on in S lovenia, and discre!onary spend incurred with execu!ng the ES G Metals
Strategy through acquis i!on. As  such, the Company wi l l  need to raise new capital  within the forecast period to fund such
discretionary spend.

Nego!a!ons with poten!al  new investors  i s  ongoing and based on historical  and recent support from new and exis!ng
investors  the Board bel ieves  that such funding, i f and when required, could be obtained through new debt or equity



investors  the Board bel ieves  that such funding, i f and when required, could be obtained through new debt or equity
issuances. However, the abi l i ty to ra ise these funds  is  not guaranteed at the date of s igning these financial  s tatements . As  a
consequence, there is  a  materia l  uncertainty to the going concern of the Group.

New and amended Standards effective for 31 December 2022 year-end adopted by the Group:

i .     The fol lowing I F RS or I F R I C  interpreta!ons were effec!ve for the first !me for the financial  year beginning 1 January
2022. Their adop!on has  not had any materia l  impact on the disclosures  or on the amounts  reported in these
financial  s tatements:

Standard Description

Amendments  to IFRS 3 Business  Combinations  - Reference to the Conceptual  Framework

Amendments  to IFRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendments  to IFRS 37 Provis ions, Contingent Liabi l i ties  and Contingent Assets

N/A Annual  Improvements  to IFRS Standards  2018-2020 Cycle

The new standards  effec!ve from 1 January 2022, as  l i s ted above, did not have a materia l  effect on the Group's  financial
statements .

i i .    Standards, amendments  and interpreta!ons, which are effec!ve for repor!ng periods  beginning aKer the date of
these financial  s tatements  which have not been adopted early:

Standard Description Effective date

IAS 1 amendments P resenta!on of F inancial  Statements  and I F RS P rac!ce Statement 2:
Disclosure of Accounting Pol icies

1 January 2023*

 

IAS 8 amendments Accoun!ng pol icies , Changes  in Accoun!ng Es!mates  and Errors  - Defini!on
of Accounting Estimates

1 January 2023*

IAS 12 amendments I ncome Taxes  - Deferred Tax related to Assets  and Liabi l i!es  aris ing from a
Single Transaction

1 January 2023*

IAS 17 amendments I nsurance contracts  - I ni!al  Appl ica!on of I F RS 17 and I F RS 9 - Compara!ve
Information

1 January 2023*

*Subject to UK endorsement

There are no I F RS's  or I F R I C  interpreta!ons that are not yet effec!ve that would be expected to have a materia l  impact on
the Company or Group.

Estimates and judgements

ExploraEon and evaluaEon assets (N ote 11) - explora!on and evalua!on costs  are ini!al ly class ified and held as
intangible fixed assets  rather than being expensed. The carrying value of intangible explora!on and evalua!on assets  are
then determined. Management cons iders  these assets  for indicators  of impairment under I F RS 6 at least annual ly based on
an es!ma!on of the recoverabi l i ty of the cost pool  from future development and produc!on of the related oi l  and gas
reserves  which requires  judgement. This  assessment includes  assessment of the underlying financial  models  for the
Pe!šovci  field and requires  es!mates  of gas  reserves, produc!on, gas  prices , opera!ng and capital  costs  associated with
the field and discount rates  (see Note 10) us ing the fa ir value less  cost to development method which is  commonplace in
the oi l  and gas  sector. The forecasts  are based on the JV partners  submiSng and obtaining approval  for an environmental
impact assessment, and also the renewal  of the concess ions  that are currently scheduled to expire in November 2023. The
Board cons iders  these factors  to be an ordinary risk for oi l  and gas  developments .

I n Apri l  2022, the Republ ic of S lovenia approved amendments  to i ts  Mining Law which include a total  ban on hydraul ic
s!mula!on. The Company bel ieves  that this  ban has  substan!al ly destroyed the economic value of the Pe!sovci  field.
Consequently, the opera!onal  and development review conducted by the Company determined that further field
development was not economical ly viable and that the current producing wel ls  had a remaining produc!on l i fe of 5.5
years . The result of the impairment review iden!fied an impairment charge of £17,800,000 and the carrying value of
exploration assets  at 31 December 2022 are ni l  (2021: £18,463,000).

Reserves - Reserves  are proven, and probable oi l  and gas  reserves  calculated on an en!tlement bas is  and are integral  to
the assessment of the carrying value of the explora!on, evalua!on and produc!on assets . Es!mates  of commercial
reserves  include es!mates  of the amount of oi l  and gas  in place, assump!ons about reservoir performance over the l i fe of
the field and assump!ons about commercial  factors  which, in turn, wi l l  be affected by the future oi l  and gas  price. (See
page 15)

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment (developed oil and gas assets) (N ote 10) - I n Apri l  2022, the Republ ic of
Slovenia approved amendments  to i ts  Mining Law which include a total  ban on hydraul ic s!mula!on. Consequently, the
opera!onal  and development review conducted by the Company determined that further field development was not
economical ly viable and that the current producing wel ls  had a remaining produc!on l i fe of 5.5 years . The result of the
impairment review iden!fied an impairment charge of £21,665,000 and the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment assets  at 31 December 2022 was ni l  (2021: £21,106,000).

The developed oi l  and gas  assets  are assessed for indicators  of impairment and tested for impairment at each repor!ng
date when indicators  of impairment exist. An impairment test was  performed based on a discounted cash flow model  us ing
a fa ir value less  cost to develop approach commonplace within the oi l  and gas  sector. Key inputs  requiring judgment and
es!mate included gas  prices , produc!on and reserves, future costs  and discount rates . W ith regard to the financial  inputs ,
a  weighted average cost of capital  ("WAC C") was  used as  the discount rate, and calculated as  12.0% (post-tax, nominal )
and for gas  prices , the Company has  used a combination of futures  rates  for the local  region.

Gas  prices  in the near term are forecast based on management's  expectation of market prices  less  deductions  under the INA
contract, before rever!ng to market prices  with reference to the forward curve fol lowing the approval  of the I P P C permit
and trans i!on to gas  sales  taking place into the S lovenian market. The forecasts  include future wel l  workovers  to access
the reserves  included in the model  together with the wider es!mated field development costs  to access  field reserves. Refer
to Note 9. As  with the explora!on and evalua!on assets , judgment was required regarding the l ikel ihood of the necessary
environmental  permits  being granted and the status  of legal  matters  which are key to the commercial  value of the assets .

DepreciaEon of property, plant and equipment (N ote 10) - Upon commencing commercial  produc!on we began to
depreciate the assets  associated with current production. The depreciation on a unit of production bas is  requires  judgment
and es!ma!on in terms of the appl icable reserves  over which the assets  are depreciated and the extent to which future
capital  expenditure is  included in the depreciable cost when such expenditure is  required to extract the reserve base. The
calcula!ons have been based on actual  produc!on, es!mates  of P 50 reserves  and best es!mates  of the future workover
costs  on the producing wel ls  to extract this  reserve. The deprecia!on charge for the year was  £214,000 (2021: £328,000)
including both deprecia!on associated with the unit of produc!on method and straight-l ine charges  for exis!ng
process ing infrastructure. This  i s  included in Notes  9 and 10 below.

Deferred tax (Note 6) - judgment has  been required in assess ing the extent to which a deferred tax asset i s  recorded, or not
recorded, in respect of the S lovenian opera!ons. No!ng the history of taxable losses  and the ini!al  phases  of produc!on,
together with assessment of budgets  and forecasts  of tax in 2022 the Board has  concluded that no deferred tax asset i s  yet
appl icable. This  i s  included at Note 7.

Decommissioning costs (Note 16)



Decommissioning costs (Note 16)

W here a materia l  obl iga!on for the removal  of wel ls  and produc!on faci l i!es  and s i te restora!on at the end of the field
l i fe exists , a  provis ion for decommiss ioning is  recognised. The amount recognised is  the one-off amount to the Company's
JV partner as  per the Revised Joint Venture Agreement. A change in the key assump!ons used to calculate rehabi l i ta!on
provis ions  could have a materia l  impact on the carrying value of the provis ions.

The carrying value of these provis ions  in the financial  s tatements  represents  an es!mate of the future costs  expected to be
incurred to rehabi l i tate each wel l , which is  reviewed at least annual ly. Future costs  are es!mated by internal  experts , with
external  specia l is ts  engaged periodical ly to ass ist management. These es!mates  are based on current price observa!ons,
taking into account developments  in technology and changes  to legal  and contractual  requirements . Expectations  regarding
cost infla!on are a lso incorporated. He carrying value of these provis ions  have not been discounted to provide a present
value of these future costs  due to the near-term uncertainty of when these costs  may materia l ise.

Intercompany receivables (Note 22) - I n l ine with the requirements  of I F RS 9 the Board has  carried out an assessment of the
poten!al  future credit loss  on intercompany receivables  under a  number of scenarios . Arriving at the expected credit loss
al lowance involved cons idering different scenarios  for the recovery of the intercompany loan receivables , the poss ible
credit losses  that could arise and the probabi l i!es  for these scenarios . I n Apri l  2022, the Republ ic of S lovenia approved
amendments  to i ts  Mining Law which include a total  ban on hydraul ic s!mula!on. Consequently, the opera!onal  and
development review conducted by the Company determined that further field development was not economical ly viable and
that the current producing wel ls  had a remaining produc!on l i fe of 5.5 years . Recognis ing the loss  in economic value,
management took the decis ion ful ly impair the receivable in the Company accounts  (2021: £32 mi l l ion).

Investments (note 12) - Judgement has  been made in respect of the carrying value of the Company's  carrying value of i ts
investments  in the subs idiaries . The process  for this  i s  the same as  the cons idera!on given in respect of both I ntangible
Assets  and Property, Plant and Equipment (see above).

Basis of consolidaEon (N ote 12) - W here the Company has  control  over an investee, i t i s  class ified as  a  subs idiary. The
Company controls  an investee i f a l l  three of the fol lowing elements  are present: power over the investee, exposure to
variable returns  from the investee, and the abi l i ty of the investor to use i ts  power to affect those variable returns. Control  i s
reassessed whenever facts  and ci rcumstances  indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements  of control .

The consol idated financial  s tatements  present the results  of the Company and i ts  subs idiaries  as  i f they formed a s ingle
enti ty. Inter-company transactions  and balances  between Group companies  are therefore el iminated in ful l .

The results  of undertakings  acquired or disposed of are consol idated from or to the date when control  passes  to or from
the Group. The results  of subs idiaries  acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the Consol idated I ncome
Statement from the date that control  commences  unti l  the date that control  ceases.

W here necessary, adjustments  are made to the results  of subs idiaries  to bring the accoun!ng pol icies  they use into l ine
with those used by the Group.

Business combinations (Note 9) - Bus iness  combinations  are accounted for us ing the acquis i tion method. The

consideration transferred for the acquis i tion of a  subs idiary comprises  the:

•    fa i r value of assets  transferred;

•    l iabi l i ties  incurred to the former owners  of the acquired bus iness;

•    equity instruments  issued by the Group;

•    fa i r value of any asset or l iabi l i ty resulting from contingent cons ideration arrangement; and

•    fa i r value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subs idiary.

I den!fiable assets  acquired, and l iabi l i!es  and con!ngent l iabi l i!es  assumed in a  bus iness  combina!on are, with l imited
excep!ons, measured ini!al ly at their fa i r values  at the acquis i!on date. The Group recognises  any noncontrol l ing interest
in the acquired en!ty on an acquis i!on-by-acquis i!on bas is  ei ther at fa i r value or at the noncontrol l ing interest's
proportionate share of the acquired enti ty's  net identi fiable assets . Acquis i tion-related costs  are expensed as  incurred.

The excess  of the cons idera!on transferred, amount of any non-control l ing interest and fa ir value of pre-exis!ng equity
interest over the fa ir value of net iden!fiable assets  acquired is  recorded as  goodwi l l . I f those amounts  are less  than the
fair value of the net iden!fiable assets  acquired, the difference is  recognised immediately in profit or loss  as  a  gain on
bargain purchase.

Joint arrangements - The Group is  party to a  joint arrangement when there is  a  contractual  arrangement that confers  joint
control  over the relevant ac!vi!es  of the arrangement to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control  i s  assessed
under the same principles  as  control  over subs idiaries .

The Group class ifies  i ts  interests  in joint arrangements  as  ei ther joint ventures , where the Group has  rights  to only the net
assets  of the joint arrangement, or joint opera!ons where the Group has  both the rights  to assets  and obl iga!ons for the
l iabi l i ties  of the joint arrangement.

Al l  of the Group's  joint arrangements  are class ified as  joint opera!ons. The Group accounts  for i ts  interests  in joint
opera!ons by recognis ing i ts  assets , l iabi l i!es , revenues and expenses  in accordance with i ts  contractual ly conferred
rights  and obl igations.

The Group has  one joint arrangement, the Pe!šovci  joint venture in S lovenia in which Ascent S lovenia Limited (a  100%
subsidiary of Ascent Resources  plc) has  a  75% working interest, however whi lst in a  cost recovery pos i!on the Company is
enti tled to 90% of hydrocarbon revenues produced.

Oil and Gas Exploration Assets

Al l  l icence/project acquis i!ons, explora!on and appraisal  costs  incurred or acquired on the acquis i!on of a  subs idiary,
are accumulated in respect of each iden!fiable project area. These costs , which are class ified as  intangible fixed assets
are only carried forward to the extent that they are expected to be recovered through the successful  development of the area
or where ac!vi!es  in the area have not yet reached a stage which permits  reasonable assessment of the existence of
economical ly recoverable reserves.

P re-l icence/project costs  are wri3en off immediately. O ther costs  are a lso wri3en off unless  commercial  reserves  have
been establ ished or the determina!on process  has  not been completed. Thus, accumulated cost in rela!on to an
abandoned area are wri3en off in ful l  to the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the decis ion to
abandon the area is  made.

Transfer of exploraEon assets to property, plant and equipment  - Assets , including l icences  or areas  of l icences, are
transferred from explora!on and evalua!on cost pools  to property, plant and equipment when the existence of
commercial ly feas ible reserves  has  been determined and the Group concludes  that the assets  can generate commercial
produc!on. This  assessment cons iders  factors  including the extent to which reserves  have been establ ished, the
produc!on levels  and margins  associated with such produc!on. The costs  transferred comprise direct costs  associated
with the relevant wel ls  and infrastructure, together with an al loca!on of the wider unal located explora!on costs  in the
cost pool  such as  original  acquis i tion costs  for the field. The producing assets  start to be depreciated fol lowing transfer.

DepreciaEon of property plant and equipment - The cost of produc!on wel ls  i s  depreciated on a unit of produc!on bas is .
The deprecia!on charge is  calculated based on total  costs  incurred to date plus  an!cipated future workover expenditure
required to extract the associated gas  reserves. This  depreciable asset base is  charged to the income statement based on
produc!on in the period over their expected l i fe!me P 50 produc!on extractable from the wel ls  per the field plan. The



produc!on in the period over their expected l i fe!me P 50 produc!on extractable from the wel ls  per the field plan. The
infrastructure associated with export produc!on is  depreciated on a straight-l ine bas is  over a  two-year period as  this  i s
the anticipated period over which this  infrastructure wi l l  be used.

Impairment of oil and gas exploration assets

Exploration/appraisal  assets  are reviewed regularly for indicators  of impairment fol lowing the guidance in IFRS 6.

'Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral  Resources ' and tested for impairment where such indicators  exist.

I n accordance with I F RS 6 the Group cons iders  the fol lowing facts  and ci rcumstances  in their assessment of whether the
Group's  oi l  and gas  exploration assets  may be impaired:

•    whether the period for which the Group has  the right to explore in a  specific area has  expired during the period
or wi l l  expire in the near future, and is  not expected to be renewed;

•    whether substan!ve expenditure on further explora!on for and evalua!on of mineral  resources  in a  specific
area is  neither budgeted nor planned;

•    whether explora!on for and evalua!on of oi l  and gas  reserves  in a  specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercial ly viable quan!!es of oi l  and gas  and the Group has  decided to discon!nue such ac!vi!es  in the
speci fic area; and

•    whether sufficient data exists  to indicate that a l though a development in a  specific area is  l ikely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the explora!on and evalua!on assets  i s  unl ikely to be recovered in ful l  from successful
development or by sale.

I f any such facts  or ci rcumstances  are noted, the Group, as  a  next step, perform an impairment test in accordance with the
provis ions  of I AS 36. I n such ci rcumstances  the aggregate carrying value of the oi l  and gas  explora!on and assets  i s
compared against the expected recoverable amount of the cash genera!ng unit. The recoverable amount is  the higher of
value in use and the fa ir value less  costs  to sel l .

The Group has  iden!fied one cash genera!ng unit, the wider Pe!šovci  project in S lovenia. Any impairment aris ing is
recognised in the Income Statement for the year.

W here there has  been a charge for impairment in an earl ier period that charge wi l l  be reversed in a  later period where
there has  been a change in ci rcumstances  to the extent that the discounted future net cash flows are higher than the net
book value at the !me. I n revers ing impairment losses , the carrying amount of the asset wi l l  be increased to the lower of i ts
original  carrying values  or the carrying value that would have been determined (net of deple!on) had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior periods.

Impairment of development and production assets and other property, plant and equipment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts  of i ts  P P &E to determine whether there is  any
indica!on that those assets  have suffered an impairment loss . I f any such indica!on exists , the recoverable amount of the
asset i s  es!mated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss  (i f any). W here the asset does  not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets , the Group es!mates  the recoverable amount of the cash-genera!ng unit to
which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount is  the higher of fa i r value less  costs  to sel l  (otherwise referred to as  fa i r
value less  cost to develop in the oi l  and gas  sector) and value in use. Fair value less  costs  to sel l  i s  determined by
discoun!ng the post-tax cash flows expected to be generated by the cash- genera!ng unit, net of associated sel l ing costs ,
and takes  into account assump!ons market par!cipants  would use in es!ma!ng fa ir value including future capital
expenditure and development cost for extrac!on of the field reserves. I n assess ing value in use, the es!mated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value us ing a  pre-tax discount rate that reflects  current market assessments  of the
time value of money and the risks  speci fic to the asset for which the estimates  of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

I f the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-genera!ng unit) i s  es!mated to be less  than i ts  carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-genera!ng unit) i s  reduced to i ts  recoverable amount. An impairment loss  i s  recognised
as  an expense immediately.

W here an impairment loss  subsequently reverses , the carrying amount of the asset (cash-genera!ng unit) i s  increased to
the revised es!mate of i ts  recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does  not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss  been recognised for the asset (cash-genera!ng unit) in
prior years . A reversal  of an impairment loss  i s  recognised as  income immediately.

Foreign currency

The Group's  strategy is  focussed on developing oi l  and gas  projects  and ES G metals  funded by shareholder equity and other
financial  assets  which are principal ly denominated in sterl ing. The functional  currency of the Company is  s terl ing.

Transac!ons in foreign currency are trans lated to the respec!ve func!onal  currency of the Group en!ty at the rates  of
exchange prevai l ing on the dates  of the transac!ons. At each repor!ng date, monetary assets  and l iabi l i!es  that are
denominated in foreign currencies  are retrans lated to the func!onal  currency at the rates  prevai l ing on the repor!ng date.
Exchange gains  and losses  on short-term foreign currency borrowings  and deposits  are included with net interest payable.

The assets  and l iabi l i!es  of foreign opera!ons are trans lated to sterl ing at foreign exchange rates  rul ing at the balance
sheet date. The revenues and expenses  of foreign opera!ons are trans lated to sterl ing at the average rate rul ing during the
period. Foreign exchange differences  aris ing on retrans la!on are recognised directly in a  separate component of equity.
Foreign exchange differences  aris ing on inter-company loans  cons idered to be permanent as  equity are recorded in equity.
The exchange rate from euro to sterl ing at 31 December 2022 was £1: €1.1308 (2021: £1:€1.1900).

On disposal  of a  foreign operation, the cumulative exchange di fferences  recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating
to that opera!on up to the date of disposal  are transferred to the consol idated income statement as  part of the profit or
loss  on disposal .

Exchange di fferences  on al l  other transactions, except inter-company foreign currency loans, are taken to operating loss .

Taxation (Note 6)

The tax expense represents  the sum of the tax currently payable and any deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is  based on the es!mated taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs  from net profit as
reported in the income statement because i t excludes  i tems of income or expense that are taxable or deduc!ble in other
years  and i t further excludes  i tems that are never taxable or deduc!ble. The Group's  l iabi l i ty for current tax is  calculated
using the expected tax rate appl icable to annual  earnings.

Deferred tax is  the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences  between the carrying amounts  of assets  and
l iabi l i!es  for financial  repor!ng purposes  and the corresponding tax bases  used in the computa!on of taxable profit. I t i s
accounted for us ing the balance sheet l iabi l i ty method. Deferred tax l iabi l i!es  are recognised for a l l  taxable temporary
differences  and deferred tax assets  are recognised to the extent that i t i s  probable that taxable profits  wi l l  be avai lable
against which deduc!ble temporary differences  can be u!l ised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets  i s  reviewed at
each repor!ng date and reduced to the extent that i t i s  no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits  wi l l  be avai lable
to al low al l  or part of the asset to be recovered.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The cost of providing share-based payments  to employees  is  charged to the income statement over the ves!ng period of the
related share op!ons or share al loca!ons. The cost i s  based on the fa ir values  of the op!ons and shares  a l located
determined us ing the binomial  method. The value of the charge is  adjusted to reflect expected and actual  levels  of ves!ng.



determined us ing the binomial  method. The value of the charge is  adjusted to reflect expected and actual  levels  of ves!ng.
Charges  are not adjusted for market related condi!ons which are not achieved. W here equity instruments  are granted to
persons  other than directors  or employees  the Consol idated I ncome Statement is  charged with the fa ir value of any goods
or services  received.

Grants  of op!ons in rela!on to acquiring explora!on assets  in l icence areas  are treated as  addi!ons to S lovenian
exploration costs  at Group level  and increases  in investments  at Company level .

Provisions (Note 16)

A provis ion is  recognised in the Statement of F inancial  Pos i!on when the Group has  a  present legal  or construc!ve
obl iga!on as  a  result of a  past event, and i t i s  probable that an ouIlow of economic benefits  wi l l  be required to se3le the
obl iga!on. I f the effect is  materia l , provis ions  are determined by es!ma!ng the expected future cash flows at a  pre-tax rate
that reflects  current market assessments  of the time value of money and the risks  speci fic to the l iabi l i ty.

Convertible loan notes

Upon issue of a  new conver!ble loan, where the conver!ble op!on is  at a  fixed rate, the net proceeds received from the
issue of C LNs are spl i t between a l iabi l i ty element and an equity component at the date of i ssue. The fa ir value of the
l iabi l i ty component is  es!mated us ing the prevai l ing market interest rate for s imi lar non-conver!ble debt. The difference
between the proceeds of i ssue of the C LNs and the fa ir value ass igned to the l iabi l i ty component, represen!ng the
embedded option to convert the l iabi l i ty into equity of the Group, i s  included in equity and is  not remeasured.

Subsequent to the ini!al  recogni!on the l iabi l i ty component is  measured at amor!sed cost us ing the effec!ve interest
method.

W hen there are amendments  to the contractual  loan note terms these terms are assessed to determine whether the
amendment represents  an inducement to the loan note holders  to convert. I f this  i s  cons idered to be the case the es!mate
of fa i r value adjusted as  appropriate and any loss  aris ing is  recorded in the income statement.

W here there are amendments  to the contractual  loan note terms that are cons idered to represent a  modifica!on to the loan
note, without represen!ng an inducement to convert, the Group treats  the transac!on as  an ex!nguishment of the exis!ng
conver!ble loan note and replaces  the instrument with a  new conver!ble loan note. The fa ir value of the l iabi l i ty
component is  es!mated us ing the prevai l ing market interest rate for s imi lar nonconver!ble debt. The fa ir value of the
convers ion right i s  recorded as  an increase in equity. The previous  equity reserve is  reclass ified to retained loss . Any gain
or loss  aris ing on the ex!nguishment of the instrument is  recorded in the income statement, unless  the transac!on is  with
a counterparty cons idered to be acting in their capacity as  a  shareholder whereby the gain or loss  i s  recorded in equity.

W here the loan note is  converted into ordinary shares  by the loan note holder; the unaccreted por!on of the loan notes  is
transferred from the equity reserve to the l iabi l i ty; the ful l  l iabi l i ty i s  then converted into share capital  and share premium
based on the convers ion price on the note.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-deriva!ve financial  instruments  comprise of investments  in equity and debt securi!es, trade and other receivables ,
cash and cash equivalents , loans  and borrowings  and trade and other payables .

Financial instruments

Classes and categories

Financial  assets  that meet the fol lowing condi!ons are measured subsequently at amor!sed cost us ing effec!ve interest
rate method:

•    The financial  asset i s  held within a  bus iness  model  whose objec!ve is  to hold financial  assets  in order to col lect
contractual  cash flows; and,

•    The contractual  terms of the financial  asset give rise on specified dates  to cash flows that are solely payments  of
principal  and interest on the principal  amount outstanding.

Financial  assets  for which the amount of future receipts  are dependent upon the Company's  share price over the term of the
instrument do not meet the cri teria  above and are recorded at fa i r value through profi t and loss .

Measurement

Financial  assets  at amortised cost.

A financial  asset i s  measured at amor!sed cost only i f both of the fol lowing condi!ons are met: (i ) i t i s  held within a
bus iness  model  whose objec!ve is  to hold assets  in order to col lect contractual  cash flows; and (i i ) the contractual  terms
of the financial  asset represent contractual  cash flows that are solely payments  of principal  and interest.

Impairment

For trade receivables , a  s impl ified approach to measuring expected credit losses  us ing a  l i fe!me expected loss  a l lowance
is  avai lable. The Group's  trade receivables  are general ly settled on a short time frame without materia l  credit risk.

The Group recognises  a  loss  a l lowance for expected credit losses  on financial  assets  which are measured at amor!sed
cost. The measurement of the loss  a l lowance depends upon the Group's  assessment at the end of each repor!ng period as
to whether the financial  instrument's  credit risk has  increased s ignificantly s ince ini!al  recogni!on, based on reasonable
and supportable information that i s  avai lable, without undue cost or effort to obtain.

W here there has  not been a s ignificant increase in exposure to credit risk s ince ini!al  recogni!on, a  twelve-month
expected credit loss  a l lowance is  es!mated. This  represents  a  por!on of the asset's  l i fe!me expected credit losses  that i s
a3ributable to a  default event that i s  poss ible within the next twelve months. W here a financial  asset has  become credit
impaired or where i t i s  determined that credit risk has  increased s ignificantly, the loss  a l lowance is  based on the asset's
l i fe!me expected credit losses . The amount of expected credit loss  recognised is  measured on the bas is  of the probabi l i ty
weighted present value of an!cipated cash shorIal ls  over the l i fe of the instrument discounted at the original  effec!ve
interest rate.

Li fe!me expected credit losses  (EC Ls) for intercompany loan receivables  are based on the assump!ons that repayment of
the loans  are demanded at the repor!ng date due to the fact that the loan is  contractual ly repayable on demand. The
subsidiaries  do not have sufficient funds  in order to repay the loan i f demanded and therefore the expected manner of
recovery to measure l i fe!me expected credit losses  is  cons idered. A range of different recovery strategies  and credit loss
scenarios  are evaluated us ing reasonable and supportable external  and internal  informa!on to assess  the l ikel ihood of
recoverabi l i ty of the balance under these scenarios .

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial  l iabi l i!es  are ini!al ly recognised at fa i r value net of transac!on costs  incurred. Subsequent to ini!al
measurement financial  l iabi l i!es  are recognised at amor!sed costs . The difference between ini!al  carrying amount of the
financial  l iabi l i!es  and their redemp!on value is  recognised in the income statement over the contractual  terms us ing the
effec!ve interest rate method. This  category includes  the fol lowing classes  of the financial  l iabi l i!es , trade and other
payables , bonds and other financial  l iabi l i!es. F inancial  l iabi l i!es  at amor!sed costs  are class ified as  current or non-
current depending on whether these are due within 12 months  after the balance sheet date or beyond.

Financial  l iabi l i ties  are derecognised when either the Group is  discharged from i ts  obl igation, they expire, are cancel led, or
replaced by a  new l iabi l i ty with substantia l ly modified terms.



Share-based payments

Share-based payments  relate to transac!ons where the Group receives  services  from employees  or service providers  and
the terms of the arrangements  include payment of a  part or whole of cons idera!on by issuing equity instruments  to the
counterparty. The Group measures  the services  received from non-employees, and the corresponding increase in equity, at
the fa ir value of the goods or services  received. W hen the transac!ons are with employees, the fa ir value is  measured by
reference to the fa ir value of the share-based payments . The expense is  recognised over the ves!ng period, which is  the
period over which al l  of the speci fied vesting conditions  are to be satis fied.

Warrants

Warrants  granted as  part of a  financing arrangement which fa i l  the fixed-for-fixed cri teria  as  a  result of ei ther the
considera!on to be received or the number of warrants  to be issued is  variable, are ini!al ly recorded at fa i r value as  a
financial  l iabi l i ty and charged as  transac!on cost deducted against the loan and held subsequently at fa i r value.
Subsequently the deriva!ve l iabi l i ty i s  revalued at each repor!ng date with changes  in the fa ir value recorded within
finance income or costs .

Equity

Share capital  i s  determined us ing the nominal  value of shares  that have been issued.

The Share premium reserve relates  to amounts  subscribed for share capital  in excess  of nominal  value less  costs  of shares
associated with share issues.

Share based payments  relate to transac!ons where the Group receives  services  from employees  or service providers  and
the terms of the arrangements  include payment of a  part or whole of cons idera!on by issuing equity instruments  to the
counterparty. The Group measures  the services  received from non-employees, and the corresponding increase in equity, at
the fa ir value of the goods or services  received. W hen the transac!ons are with employees, the fa ir value is  measured by
reference to the fa ir value of the shares  issued. The expense is  recognised over the ves!ng period, which is  the period over
which al l  of the speci fied vesting conditions  are to be satis fied.

Equity-se3led share-based payments  are credited to a  share-based payment reserve as  a  component of equity un!l  related
options  or warrants  are exercised or lapse.

The Merger reserve relates  to the value of shares , in excess  of nominal  value, i ssued with respect of the Trameta
acquis i tion in 2016.

The Trans la!on reserve comprises  the exchange differences  from trans la!ng the net investment in foreign en!!es and of
monetary i tems receivable from subs idiaries  for which settlement is  neither planned nor l ikely in the foreseeable future.

Retained losses  includes  a l l  current and prior period results  as  disclosed in the income statement.

Investments and loans

Shares  and loans  in subs idiary undertakings  are shown at cost. P rovis ions  are made for any impairment when the fa ir
value of the assets  i s  assessed as  less  than the carrying amount of the asset. I nter-company loans  are repayable on
demand but are included as  non-current as  the real isation is  not expected in the short term.

Segment reporting

O pera!ng segments  are reported in a  manner cons istent with the internal  repor!ng provided to the chief opera!ng
decis ion-maker. The chief operating decis ion-maker has  been identi fied as  the Chief Executive Officer ("CEO").

Revenue recognition

Sales  represent amounts  received and receivable from third parties  for goods and services  rendered to the customers. Sales
are recognised when control  of the goods has  transferred to the customer. Condensate, which is  col lected at a  separa!ng
sta!on and transported via  trucks  to a  customer in Hungary is  recorded on del ivery according to the terms of the contract.
At this  point in !me, the performance obl iga!on is  sa!sfied in ful l  with !tle, risk, en!tlement to payment and customer
possess ion confirmed. Revenue is  measured as  the amount of cons idera!on which the Group expects  to receive, based on
the market price for gas  and condensate aKer deduc!on of costs  agreed per the Restated Joint O pera!ng Agreement
("RJOA") and sales  taxes. The Company fol lows the five step process  set out in IFRS 15 for revenue recognition.

Revenue is  derived from the produc!on of hydrocarbons under the Pe!šovci  Concess ion, which Ascent S lovenia Limited
holds  a  75% working interest, however whi lst in a  cost recovery pos i!on the Company is  en!tled to 90% of hydrocarbon
revenues produced. Under the terms of the R JOA, and in accordance with S lovenian law, the concess ion holder retains  the
rights  to a l l  hydrocarbons produced. The concess ion holder enters  into sales  agreements  with customers  and transfers  the
relevant portion of hydrocarbon sales  to Ascent Slovenia Limited for the services  i t provides  under the RJOA.

During the year the informa!on required to determine the transac!on price of the revenues rela!ng to producing assets
under the Pe!šovci  Concess ion was not avai lable. The contractual  terms under the Joint arrangement in S lovenia are under
dispute and i t was  therefore unclear at the year end whether the performance obl iga!ons had been met. For these reasons,
no revenue has  been recognised during the year in accordance with IFRS 15.

Payments  are typical ly received around 30 days  from the end of the month during which del ivery has  occurred. There are
no balances  of accrued or deferred revenue at the balance sheet date.

Under the R JOA, the Group is  en!tled to 90% of hydrocarbon revenues produced whi lst in a  cost recovery pos i!on in the
Petišovci  area and the Group records  revenue on the enti tlement bas is  accordingly.

Credit terms are agreed per RJOA contract and are short term, without any financing component.

The Group has  no sales  returns  or reclama!ons of services  s ince i t has  only one costumer. Sales  are disaggregated by
geography.

Goodwill

Goodwi l l  aris ing from business  combina!ons is  included in intangible assets . Goodwi l l  i s  not amor!sed but i t i s  tested for
impairment annual ly, or more frequently i f events  or changes  in ci rcumstances  indicate that i t might be impaired, and is
carried at cost less  accumulated impairment losses . Goodwi l l  i s  a l located to cash-genera!ng units  for the purpose of
impairment tes!ng. The al loca!on is  made to those cash-genera!ng units  or groups of cash- genera!ng units  that are
expected to benefi t from the bus iness  combination in which the goodwi l l  arose.

Contingent Consideration

Con!ngent cons idera!on is  measured at fa i r value at the !me of the bus iness  combina!on and is  cons idered in the
determination of goodwi l l .

Contingent Liability

A con!ngent l iabi l i ty i s  recognised when the group has  a  poss ible obl iga!on (legal  or construc!ve), as  a  result of a  past
event, and whose existence wi l l  be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events  not whol ly within the control  of the group, or the amount of the obl iga!on cannot be measured with sufficient
rel iabi l i ty.

I f the l ikel ihood of an ouIlow of resources  is  remote, the poss ible obl iga!on is  neither a  provis ion nor a  con!ngent
l iabi l i ty and no disclosure is  made.



l iabi l i ty and no disclosure is  made.

Contingent Asset

A con!ngent asset i s  recognised when the group has  a  poss ible asset, as  a  result of a  past event, and whose existence wi l l
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events  not whol ly within the
control  of the group.

Such con!ngent assets  are only recognised as  assets  in the financial  s tatements  where the real isa!on of income is
virtual ly certain. I f the inflow of economic benefits  is  only probable, the con!ngent asset i s  disclosed as  a  cla im in favour
of the group but not recognised in the statement of financial  pos ition.

 

2.    Segmental Analysis

The Group has  two reportable segments , an opera!ng segment and a head office segment, as  described below. The
opera!ons and day to day running of the bus iness  are carried out on a local  level  and therefore managed separately. The
opera!ng segment reports  to the UK  head office which evaluates  performance, decide how to al locate resources  and make
other opera!ng decis ions  such as  the purchase of materia l  capital  assets  and services . I nternal  reports  are generated and
submitted to the Group's  CEO for review on a monthly bas is .

The operations  of the Group as  a  whole are the exploration for, development and production of oi l  and gas  reserves.

The two geographic reporting segments  are made up as  fol lows:

Slovenia                 exploration, development and production
UK                           head office

 

The costs  of explora!on and development works  are carried out under shared l icences  with joint ventures  and subs idiaries
which are co-ordinated by the UK  head office. Segment revenue, segment expense and segment results  include transfers
between segments . Those transfers  are el iminated on consol ida!on. I nforma!on regarding the current and prior year's
results  for each reportable segment is  included below.

2022
UK

£,000s
Slovenia

£'000s
Elims

£'000s
Total

£'000s
Hydrocarbon sales - 581 - 581
Intercompany sales 417 12 (429) -
Total revenue 417 593 (429) 581
Cost of sales - (504) - (504)
Administrative expenses (719) (642) (111) (1,472)

Material non-cash items
Depreciation (1) (213) - (214)
Impairment (43,622) (25,795) 29,696 (39,721)
Goodwi l l  impairment (203) - - (203)
Decommiss ion provis ion - (326) - (326)
Net finance costs (31) (1) - (32)

Reportable segment profit/(loss) before taxation (44,159) (26,888) 28,156 (41,891)
Taxation - - - -

Reportable segment profit/(loss) after taxation (44,159) (26,888) 28,156 (41,891)

Reportable segment assets
Carrying value of exploration assets - 18,463 - 18,463
Impairment to exploration assets - (18,820) - (18,820)
Effect of exchange rate movements - 357 - 357
Total  plant and equipment 4 - - 4
Prepaid abandonment fund - 300 - 300
Investment in subs idiaries - - - -
Intercompany receivables - - - -

Total non-current assets 4 300 - 304
Other assets 326 10 - 336

Consolidated total assets 330 310 - 640

Reportable segment liabilities
Trade payables (219) (757) - (976)
External  loan balances (521) - - (521)
Inter-group borrowings - (34,536) 34,536 -
Other l iabi l i ties - (663) - (663)

Consolidated total liabilities (740) (35,956) 34,536 (2,160)
 

 

 

2021
UK

£,000s
Slovenia

£'000s
Elims

£'000s
Total

£'000s
Hydrocarbon sales - - - -
Intercompany sales - 13 (13) -
Total revenue - 13 (13) -
Cost of sales - (19) - (19)
Administrative expenses (1,520) (89) 13 (1,596)

Material non-cash items
Depreciation - (328) - (328)
Net finance costs (27) (1) - (28)

Reportable segment profit/(loss) before taxation (1,547) (424) - (1,971)
Taxation - - - -



Taxation - - - -

Reportable segment profit/(loss) after taxation (1,547) (424) - (1,971)

Reportable segment assets
Carrying value of exploration assets - 18,753 - 18,753
Additions  to exploration assets - - - -
Effect of exchange rate movements - (290) - (290)
Total  plant and equipment - 21,111 - 21,111
Prepaid abandonment fund - 300 - 300
Investment in subs idiaries 16,099 - (15,446) 653
Intercompany receivables 27,526 - (27,526) -

Total non-current assets 43,625 39,874 (42,972) 40,527
Other assets 115 (10) - 105

Consolidated total assets 43,740 38,694 (42,972) 40,632

Reportable segment liabilities
Trade payables (494) (277) - (771)
External  loan balances (541) - - (541)
Inter-group borrowings - (32,677) 32,677 -
Other l iabi l i ties (450) (312) - (762)

Consolidated total liabilities (1,485) (33,266) 32,677 (2,074)

Revenue from customers

Revenue for 2022 was £581,000 (2021: ni l ). The on-going dispute with the JV partner was  par!al ly resolved in August 2022
resul!ng in the recogni!on of revenue, and receipt of funds, from the hydrocarbon produc!on for the period Apri l  2020 to
December 2021. Hydrocarbon produc!on for 2022 is  s!l l  subject to dispute and has  not been recognised in the 2022 year.
The performance obl iga!ons are set out in the Group's  revenue recogni!on pol icy. The price for the sale of gas  and
condensate is  set with reference to the market price at the date the performance obl igation is  satis fied.

 

 

3.    Operating loss is stated after charging:

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

Employee costs 812 1,067
Shared based payment charge 2 -
Depreciation 214 328

Auditor's remuneration:
Audit fees  - PKF 52 45
Fees  payable to the Company's  auditor for other services - -

52 45
 

4.    Employees and directors

a)     Employees

The average number of persons  employed by the Group, including Executive Directors , was:

Year ended
31 December

2022

Year ended
31 December

2021
Management and technical 7 7
 

b)    Directors and employee's remuneration

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

Employees and directors  
Wages and salaries 667 826
Social  securi ty costs 91 145
Pension costs 1 2
Bonuses 53 86
Share base payments 2 -
Taxable benefi ts 13 8

827 1,067
 

c)     Director's remuneration

Please see Remuneration report on pages  32-33.

 

 

5.    Finance income and costs recognised in the year



Finance costs

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

  
Interest charge on loans (30) (26)
Bank charges (2) (2)

(32) (28)

Please refer to Note 15 for a  description of financing activi ty during the year.

 

6.    Income tax expense

 

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

  
Current tax expense - -
Deferred tax expense - -
Total tax expense for the year - -

The difference between the total  tax expense shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK
corporation tax to the loss  before tax is  as  fol lows:

 

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

Loss  for the year (41,891) (1,971)
 

Income tax us ing the Company's  domestic tax rate at 19% (2021: 19%) (7,959) (375)
 

Effects  of:  
Net increase in unrecognised losses  c/f 7,959 375
Effect of tax rates  in foreign jurisdictions - -
Other non-deductible expenses - -
Total tax expense for the year - -
 

 

7.    Deferred tax - Group and Company

 

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

Group  
Total  tax losses  - UK and Slovenia (95,118) (53,277)
Unrecorded deferred tax asset at 19% (2021: 19%) 16,170 9,049

 
Company  
Total  tax losses (59,249) (15,080)
Unrecorded deferred tax asset at 19% (2021: 19%) 10,072 1,548

No deferred tax asset has  been recognised in respect of the tax losses  carried forward, due to the uncertainty as  to when
profi ts  wi l l  be generated. Refer to cri tical  accounting estimates  and judgments .

 

8.    Earnings per share

 

Year ended
31 December

2022
£'000s

Year ended
31 December

2021
£'000s

Result for the year  
Total  loss  for the year attributable to equity shareholders (41,891) (1,971)

 
Weighted average number of shares Number Number
For bas ic earnings  per share 133,972,082 108,007,151

 
Loss  per share (pence) (31.27) (1.83)

As  the result for the year was  a  loss , the bas ic and di luted loss  per share are the same. At 31 December 2022, poten!al ly
di lu!ve instruments  in issue were 65,969,404 (2021: 29,262,396). D i lu!ve shares  arise from share op!ons and warrants
issued by the Company.

 

9.    Business combinations

There have been no acquis i!ons during the period, however the Board strategical ly expect acquis i!ons to be a common
component of growth in the future.

I n Apri l  2020, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital  of Energe!cal  Limited, a  UK  Company with exclus ive rights



I n Apri l  2020, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital  of Energe!cal  Limited, a  UK  Company with exclus ive rights
to secure a  P roduc!on Sharing Contract ("P S C") on a producing onshore Cuban oi l  l i cence. The ini!al  cons idera!on for the
acquis i!on of Energe!cal  comprised of the issue of s ix mi l l ion new ordinary shares  valued at £203,000 and a further
£450,000 (see note 17) of con!ngent cons idera!on that would be payable on the execu!on of produc!on sharing
contracts .

Consideration - new ordinary shares  issued at 3.38p 203
Contingent cons ideration (note 17) 450
Total consideration and value of goodwill 653

The exclus ive M O U covering the rights  to nego!ate P S Cs  with the exclus ivi ty lapsed on 31 December 2021 and the M O U
remaining on a non-exclus ive bas is  un!l  the end of Apri l  2022. The Company took to decis ion to cease evalua!ng assets  in
Cuba on 15 August 2022 and to ful ly impair the value goodwi l l .

Goodwill
At 1 January 2022 653
Impairment (653)
At 31 December 2022 -

 

10.  Property, plant and equipment

Cost

Computer
Equipment

£'000s

Developed Oi l
& Gas  Assets

£'000s
Total

£'000s
At 1 January 2021 6 24,594 24,600
Additions 5 - 5
Effect of exchange rate movements - (1,631) (1,631)
At 31 December 2021 11 22,963 22,974
At 1 January 2022 11 22,963 22,974
Additions 1 - 1
Effect of exchange rate movements - 1,203 1,203
At 31 December 2022 12 24,166 24,178
 
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 (6) (1,811) (1,817)
Charge for the year - (328) (328)
Effect of exchange rate movements - 282 282
At 31 December 2021 (6) (1,857) (1,863)
At 1 January 2022 (6) (1,857) (1,863)
Charge for the year (2) (212) (214)
Impairment - (21,193) (21,193)
Effect of exchange rate movements - (904) (904)
At 31 December 2022 (8) (24,166) (24,174)
 
Carrying value
At 31 December 2022 4 - 4
At 31 December 2021 5 21,106 21,111
At 1 January 2021 - 22,783 22,783

I mpairment of £21,193,000 (2021: ni l ) has  been recognised during the year. I n Apri l  2022, the Republ ic of S lovenia
approved amendments  to i ts  Mining Law which include a total  ban on hydraul ic s!mula!on. Consequently, the opera!onal
and development review conducted by the Company determined that further field development was not economical ly viable
and that the current producing wel ls  had a remaining produc!on l i fe of 5.5 years . Detai ls  of the impairment judgments  and
estimates  in the fa ir value less  cost to develop assessment as  set out in Note 1.

 

11.  Exploration and evaluation assets - Group

Cost
Slovenia

£'000s
Total

£'000s
At 1 January 2021 18,753 18,753
Effe cts  of e xcha nge  ra te  move me nts (290) (290)
At 31 December 2021 18,463 18,463
At 1 January 2022 18,463 18,463
Impa i rme nt (18,820) (18,820)
Effe cts  of e xcha nge  ra te  move me nts 357 357
At 31 December 2022 - -
 
At 31 December 2022 - -
At 31 De ce mbe r 2021 18,463 18,463
At 1 Ja nua ry 2021 18,753 18,753

I mpairment of £18,820,000 (2021: ni l ) has  been recognised during the year. I n Apri l  2022, the Republ ic of S lovenia
approved amendments  to i ts  Mining Law which include a total  ban on hydraul ic s!mula!on. Consequently, the opera!onal
and development review conducted by the Company determined that further field development was not economical ly viable
and that the current producing wel ls  had a remaining produc!on l i fe of 5.5 years . As  at 31 December 2022 the net present
value was s ignificantly lower than the carrying value of the assets  which indicated that an impairment of 100% of
intangible oi l  and gas  assets  was  warranted. Detai ls  of the impairment judgments  and es!mates  and the fa ir value less
cost to develop assessment as  set out in Note 1.

For the purposes  of impairment tes!ng the intangible oi l  and gas  assets  are a l located to the Group's  cash- genera!ng unit,
which represent the lowest level  within the Group at which the intangible oi l  and gas  assets  are measured for internal
management purposes, which is  not higher than the Group's  operating segments  as  reported in Note 2.

The res idual  value of the intangible oi l  and gas  assets  represents  the amount provided for decommiss ioning costs  (note 16)
less  the amounts  in the Prepaid Abandonment Fund (note 13).



less  the amounts  in the Prepaid Abandonment Fund (note 13).

 

12.  Investments in subsidiaries - Company

 
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Cost   
At 1 January 16,102 16,096
Addi ti ons 0 6
At 31 December 16,102 16,102
Accumul a te d i mpa i rme nt
At 1 Ja nua ry - -
Impa i rme nt (16,102) -
At 31 December - -
Ne t book va l ue
At 31 December - 16,102

I mpairment of £16,102,000 (2021: ni l ) has  been recognised during the year. I n Apri l  2022, the Republ ic of S lovenia
approved amendments  to i ts  Mining Law which include a total  ban on hydraul ic s!mula!on. Consequently, the opera!onal
and development review conducted by the Company determined that further field development was not economical ly viable
and that the current producing wel ls  had a remaining produc!on l i fe of 5.5 years . As  at 31 December 2022 the net present
value was s ignificantly lower than the carrying value of the assets  which indicated that an impairment of 100% of
investment in subs idiaries .

The Company's  subs idiary undertakings  at the date of i ssue of these financial  s tatements , which are a l l  100% owned, are
set out below:

Name of company & registered
office address Principal activity

Country of
incorporation

% of share capital
held 2022

% of share capital
held 2021

As ce nt Sl ove ni a  Li mi te d
Towe r Ga te  Pl a ce
Ta l -Qroqq Stre e t
Ms i da , Ma l ta

Oi l  a nd ga s
e xpl ora ti on

Ma l ta 100% 100%

As ce nt Re s ource s  doo
Gl a vna  ul i ca  7
9220 Le nda va
Sl ove ni a

Oi l  a nd ga s
e xpl ora ti on

Sl ove ni a 100% 100%

Tra me ta  doo
Gl a vna  ul i ca  7
9220 Le nda va
Sl ove ni a

Infra s tructure  owne r Sl ove ni a 100% 100%

As ce nt Hi s pa ni c Re s ource s
UK Li mi te d
5 Ne w Stre e t Squa re
London EC4A 3TW

Oi l  a nd ga s
e xpl ora ti on

Engl a nd a nd Wa l e s 100% 100%

As ce nt Hi s pa ni c Ve nture s ,
S.L.
C Ll ui s  Munta da s , 8
08035 Ba rce l ona

Oi l  a nd ga s
e xpl ora ti on

Spa i n 100% 100%

Al l  subs idiary companies  are held directly by Ascent Resources  plc.

Considera!on of the carrying value of investments  is  carried out a longs ide the assessments  made in respect of the
recoverabi l i ty of carrying value of the group's  producing and intangibles  assets . The judgements  and es!mates  made
therein are the same as  for investments  and as  such no separate disclosure is  made.

 

13.  Trade and other receivables - Group

 
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
VAT re cove ra bl e 33 42
Pre pa i d a ba ndonme nt l i a bi l i ty 300 300
Pre pa yme nts  & a ccrue d i ncome (22) (34)
 311 308
Le s s  non-curre nt porti on (300) (300)
Curre nt porti on 11 8

The prepaid abandonment l iabi l i ty represents  funds  the Group has  deposited into a  bank account to be made avai lable for
the purposes  of decommiss ioning wel ls  that are currently in production.

 

14.  Trade and other receivables - Company

 

a)     Trade Receivables

 
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
VAT re cove ra bl e 14 19
Pre pa yme nts  & a ccrue d i ncome 10 9
 24 28
 

b)    Intercompany Receivables

 

Ca s h
£'000s

2022
Se rvi ce s

£'000s
Tota l

£'000s
Ca s h

£'000s

2021
Se rvi ce s

£'000s
Tota l

£'000s
As ce nt Sl ove ni a  Li mi te d - - - 17,368 5,404 22,772
As ce nt Re s ource s  doo - - - 2,951 1,730 4,681
Tra me ta  doo - - - 11 - 11



As ce nt Hi s pa ni c Ve nture s - - - 56 - 56
- - - 20,386 7,134 27,520

Cash refers  to funds  advanced by the Company to subs idiaries . Services  relates  to services  provided by the Company to
subsidiaries . The loans  are repayable on demand but are class ified as  non-current reflec!ng the period of expected
ultimate recovery.

Management have carried out an assessment of the poten!al  future credit loss  the loans  class ified as  's tage 3' under I F RS
9 and assessed for l i fe!me expected credit loss  given their on-demand nature under a  number of scenarios . I n Apri l  2022,
the Republ ic of S lovenia approved amendments  to i ts  Mining Law which include a total  ban on hydraul ic s!mula!on.
Consequently, the opera!onal  and development review conducted by the Company determined that further field
development was not economical ly viable and that the current producing wel ls  had a remaining produc!on l i fe of 5.5
years . As  at 31 December 2022 the net present value was s ignificantly lower than the carrying value of the assets  which
indicated that an impairment of 100% of intercompany receivables  at the Company level  was  warranted. I mpairment for
the year under review was £27,520,000 (2021: ni l ).

 

15.  Borrowings - Group and Company

Group
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Curre nt
Borrowi ngs - -
Conve rti bl e  l oa n note s 5 5
Non-curre nt
Borrowi ng 516 536

521 541
Company
Curre nt
Borrowi ngs - -
Conve rti bl e  l oa n note s 5 5
Non-curre nt
Borrowi ng 516 536

521 541

I n December 2022, the Company reprofiled i ts  outstanding debt with Riverfort Global  O pportuni!es. The total  outstanding
obl iga!on stood at £566,000 with the Company repaying £50,000 of the total  outstanding payment obl iga!ons of
£561,620, with £25,000 in cash plus  £25,000 which wi l l  be sa!sfied with the issue of 625,000 new shares. The remaining
balance of £511,620 was re-profiled such that i t wi l l  incur a  coupon of 8 per cent and now be redeemable in s ix equal  cash
instalments  of £92,091.60 as  of 14 September 2023 and monthly thereafter with final  payment on 14 February 2024.

The current conver!ble loan was due for redemp!on on 19 November 2019 and at the balance sheet date £5,625 remain
unclaimed.

 

16.  Provisions - Group

£000s
At 1 January 2021 328
Fore i gn e xcha nge  move me nt (16)
Provi s i on -
At 31 December 2021 312
At 1 January 2022 312
Fore i gn e xcha nge  move me nt 13
Provi s i on 338
At 31 December 2022 663

The amount provided for decommiss ioning costs  represents  the Group's  share of s i te restora!on costs  for the Pe!šovci
field in S lovenia. The most recent es!mate is  that the year-end provis ion wi l l  become payable aKer 2037. The Company has
placed £300,000 on deposit as  col lateral  against this  l iabi l i ty see Note 13.

 

17.  Contingent consideration due on Acquisition

Group
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Non-Curre nt
As ce nt Hi s pa ni c Li mi te d (forme rl y Ene rge ti ca l  Li mi te d) - 450

- 450

The con!ngent cons idera!on is  based on the defined con!ngent cons idera!on in the acquis i!on of Ascent Hispanic
Limited (Formerly Energe!cal  Limited), compris ing £100,000 in cash and a further £350,000 in shares. The Company has
not discounted the con!ngent cons idera!on s ince the impact would not be materia l . The Company took to decis ion to
cease evalua!ng assets  in Cuba on 15 August 2022 and as  such write down the value of the con!ngent cons idera!on in
ful l .

Please refer to note 9 of the financial  s tatements  for the cons ideration in the acquis i tion of Ascent Hispanic Limited.

 

18.  Trade and other payables - Group

 
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Tra de  pa ya bl e s 437 581
Ta x a nd s oci a l  s e curi ty pa ya bl e 44 16
Accrua l s  a nd de fe rre d i ncome 495 174

976 771
 

19.  Trade and other payables - Company

 
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Tra de  pa ya bl e s 138 309
Ta x a nd s oci a l  s e curi ty pa ya bl e 28 10



Ta x a nd s oci a l  s e curi ty pa ya bl e 28 10
Accrua l s  a nd de fe rre d i ncome 53 174

219 493
 

 

20.  Called up share capital

 
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Authorised
2,000,000,000 ordi na ry s ha re s  of 0.5p e a ch 10,000 10,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
3,019,648,452 de fe rre d s ha re s  of 0.195p e a ch 5,888 5,888
1,737,110,763 de fe rre d s ha re s  of 0.09p e a ch 1,563 1,563
109,376,804 ordi na ry s ha re s  of 0.5p e a ch 763 547

8,214 7,998

Reconciliation of share capital movement
2022

numbe r
2021

numbe r
At 1 January 109,376,804 95,283,281

Is s ue  of s ha re s  duri ng the  ye a r 43,041,211 14,093,523

At 31 December 152,418,015 109,376,804

The deferred shares  have no voting rights  and are not el igible for dividends.

Shares issued during the year

•     On 19 January 2022, the Company raised £600,000 via  a  placing of 18,181,818 ordinary shares  with investors .

•     O n 19 January 2022, the Company issued 303,030 ordinary shares  at a  price of 3.30p to a  profess ional  advisor in l ieu
of fees.

•     O n 3 February 2022, the Company issued 1,636,363 ordinary shares  at a  price of 3.30p to profess ional  advisors  in l ieu
of fees  and to staff in l ieu of bonus.

•     O n 14 Apri l  2022, the Company received £242,500 in respect to a  warrants  exercise over 6,062,500 new ordinary
shares.

•     On 1 December 2022, the Company raised £600,000 via  a  placing of 15,000,000 ordinary shares  with investors .

•     O n 1 December 2022, the Company issued 1,232,500 ordinary shares  at a  price of 4.00p to profess ional  advisors  in
l ieu of fees .

•     O n 1 December 2022, The Company issued 625,000 ordinary shares  at a  price of 4.00p to Riverfort Global
Opportunities  as  a  repayment of loan.

 

Shares issued during the prior year

•     On 6 January 2021, the Company issued 208,991 ordinary shares  at a  price of 5.74p to a  profess ional  advisor in l ieu of
fees.

•     O n 11 January 2021, the Company received £62,500 in respect to a  warrants  exercise over 833,333 new ordinary
shares. Additional ly, the Company issued 66,667 new shares  at 7.5p in l ieu of the 8% cash coupon.

•     O n 12 January 2021, the Company received £55,000 in respect to a  warrants  exercise over 1,000,000 new ordinary
shares.

•     On 2 February 2021, the Company received £7,500 in respect to a  warrants  exercise over 187,500 new ordinary shares.

•     O n 4 February 2021, the Company received £62,500 in respect to a  warrants  exercise over 833,333 new ordinary
shares. Additional ly, the Company issued 66,667 new shares  at 7.5p in l ieu of the 8% cash coupon.

•     On 5 February 2021, received £62,500 in respect to a  warrants  exercise over 900,000 new ordinary shares.

•     On 11 February 2021, the Company raised £1m via  a  placing of 9,997,032 ordinary shares  with investors .

 

21.  Exploration expenditure commitments

I n order to maintain an interest in the oi l  and gas  permits  in which the Group is  involved, the Group is  commi3ed to meet
the condi!ons under which the permits  were granted and the obl iga!ons of any joint opera!ng agreements . The !ming and
the amount of explora!on expenditure commitments  and obl iga!ons of the Group are subject to the work programmes
required as  per the permit commitments . This  may vary s ignificantly from the forecast programmes based upon the results
of the work performed. Dri l l ing results  in any of the projects  may also cause varia!ons to the forecast programmes and
consequent expenditure. Such ac!vity may lead to accelerated or decreased expenditure. I t i s  the Group's  pol icy to seek
joint operating partners  at an early stage to reduce i ts  commitments .

At 31 December 2022, the Group had exploration and expenditure commitments  of £ Ni l  (2021 - Ni l ).

 

22.  Related party transactions

There is  no ultimate control l ing party for the Company.

Directors

Key management are those persons  having authori ty and responsibi l i ty for planning, control l ing and direc!ng the
ac!vi!es  of the Group. I n the opinion of the Board, the Group's  key management are the Directors  of Ascent Resources  plc.
Information regarding their compensation is  given in Note 4.

2022

There were no transactions  involving directors  during the year (2021: ni l ).

 

23.  Events subsequent to the reporting period

I n February 2023 the Company granted an aggregate of 4,600,000 op!ons over ordinary shares  as  had been announced by
RNS on 11 November 2022.



I n February 2023 the Company granted an aggregate of 4,600,000 op!ons over ordinary shares  as  had been announced by
RNS on 11 November 2022.

 O n 23 February 2023 the Company announced that i t had s igned a Strategic Col labora!on Agreement with Beryl
I nterna!onal  (P ty) Ltd in which the par!es  agree to work together to iden!fy and poten!al ly fund both those LATAM ES G
Metals  opportuni!es  a lready iden!fied by Ascent and new African opportuni!es  introduced by Beryl . I n support of the
col labora!on, Beryl  has  agreed to subscribe for£ 1,000,000 in new equity via  a  direct subscrip!on at 4 pence per new
share. The Subscrip!on wi l l  be conducted in two tranches, with a  first tranche of £300,000 in new equity clos ing on 21
March 2023 and the balance of £700,000 clos ing on or before 30 June 2023.

O n 21 March 2023 the Company announced that, fol lowing the inclus ion of South Africa to the FATF's  'grey l i s t' on 24
February 2023 and the consequent addi!onal  processes  required to complete interna!onal  funds  transfers  out of South
Africa, the direct subscrip!on from Beryl , as  announced on 23 February 2023, has  now been delayed. I t i s  now expected
that se3lement of the £1 mi l l ion subscrip!on at 4 pence per new subscrip!on share wi l l  take place in one ful l  £1 mi l l ion
tranche on comple!on of the capital isa!on of the Mauri!us  domici led special  purpose vehicle created by Beryl  for this
investment.

O n 4 Apri l  2023 the Company announced that achieved a pos i!ve resolu!on in the media!on process  between AS L and
Geoenergo as  joint venture ("JV") partners  and Petrol  Geo as  JV service provider. Geoenergo has  agreed to se3le a l l
outstanding hydrocarbon revenues owed to AS L from January 2022 to February 2023 which total  €1,724,689 and AS L has
agreed to settle a l l  outstanding JV operating costs  owed to Petrol  Geo for €1,436,000.

 

24.  Share based payments

The Company has  provided the Directors , certain employees  and ins!tu!onal  investors  with share op!ons and warrants
('op!ons'). O p!ons are exercisable at a  price equal  to the clos ing market price of the Company's  shares  on the date of
grant. The exercisable period varies  and can be up to seven years  once ful ly vested after which time the option lapses.

Detai ls  of the share options  outstanding during the year are as  fol lows:

 Shares

Weighted
Average Price

(pence)
Outs ta ndi ng a t 1 Ja nua ry 2021 7,348,142 53.12
Outstanding at 31 December 2021 7,348,142 53.12
Exercisable at 31 December 2021 1,450,763 248.72

Outs ta ndi ng a t 1 Ja nua ry 2022 7,348,142 253.72
Gra nte d duri ng the  ye a r 500,000 5.00
Expi re d duri ng the  ye a r -
Outs ta ndi ng a t 31 De ce mbe r 2022 7,848,142 50.05
Exercisable at 31 December 2022 1,450,763 248.72

The value of the op!ons is  measured by the use of a  Black Scholes  Model . The inputs  into the Black Scholes  Model  made in
2022 were as  fol lows:

Sha re  pri ce  a t gra nt 3.85
Exe rci s e  pri ce 5.00
Vol a ti l i ty 59.45%
Expe cte d l i fe 5 ye a rs
Ri s k fre e  ra te 1%
Expe cte d di vi de nd yi e l d 0%

Expected vola!l i ty was  determined by calcula!ng the historical  vola!l i ty of the Group's  share price over the previous  5
years . The expected l i fe i s  the expiry period of the options  from the date of i ssue.

O p!ons outstanding at 31 December 2022 have an exercise price in the range of 2.9p and 7.78p (31 December 2021: 2.9p
and 7.78p) and a weighted average contractual  l i fe of 4.5 years  (31 December 2021: 4.5 years). The amount recognised in
the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £2,000 (2021: ni l ).

Detai ls  of the warrants  issued in the year are as  fol lows:

Issued Exercisable from Expiry date Number outstanding Exercise price
27 Ja nua ry 2022 Anyti me  unti l 26 Ja nua ry 2024 20,303,030 5.00p
27 Ja nua ry 2022 Anyti me  unti l 26 Ja nua ry 2024 1,000,000 5.00p
14 Apri l  2022 Anyti me  unti l 14 Apri l  2025 9,093,750 4.00p
1 De ce mbe r 2022 Anyti me  unti l 1 De ce mbe r 2024 15,000,000 5.00p
1 De ce mbe r 2022 Anyti me  unti l 1 De ce mbe r 2024 4,600,000 5.00p

 

 

 

 Warrants

Weighted
Average Price

(pence)
Outs ta ndi ng a t 1 Ja nua ry 2022 21,914,254 6.80
Gra nte d duri ng the  ye a r 49,996,780 4.82
Exe rci s e d duri ng the  ye a r (6,062,500) 4.00
Expi re d duri ng the  ye a r (7,727,272) 5.50
Outs ta ndi ng a t 31 De ce mbe r 2022 58,121,262 5.20
Exercisable at 31 December 2022 58,121,262 5.20

The warrants  outstanding at the period end have a weighted average remaining contractual  l i fe of 2.2 years . The exercise
prices  of the warrants  are between 4.00 - 7.50p per share.

 

25.  Notes supporting the statement of cash flows

Group
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Ca s h a t ba nk a nd a va i l a bl e  on de ma nd 325 97
Ca s h he l d on de pos i t a ga i ns t ba nk gua ra nte e - -

325 97



325 97

Company
Ca s h a t ba nk a nd a va i l a bl e  on de ma nd 302 88
Ca s h he l d on de pos i t a ga i ns t ba nk gua ra nte e - -

302 88

Signi ficant non-cash transactions  are as  fol lows:

 
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Inte re s t cha rge d on l oa ns 30 26

 

26.  Financial risk management

Group and Company

The Group's  financial  l iabi l i!es  comprise C LNs, borrowings  and trade payables . Al l  l iabi l i!es  are measured at amor!sed
cost. These are detai led in Notes  15 and 18.

The Group has  various  financial  assets , being trade receivables  and cash, which arise directly from i ts  opera!ons. Al l  are
class i fied at amortised cost. These are detai led in Notes  13, 14 and 25.

The main risks  aris ing from the Group's  financial  instruments  are credit risk, l iquidity risk and market risk (including
interest risk and currency risk). The risk management pol icies  employed by the Group to manage these risks  are discussed
below:

Credit risk

Credit risk i s  the risk of an unexpected loss  i f a  counter party to a  financial  instrument fa i ls  to meet i ts  commercial
obl iga!ons. The Group's  maximum credit risk exposure is  l imited to the carrying amount of cash of £97,000 and trade and
other receivables  of £42,000. Credit risk i s  managed on a Group bas is . Funds are deposited with financial  ins!tu!ons with
a credit ra!ng equivalent to, or above, the main UK  clearing banks. The Company's  l iquid resources  are invested having
regard to the !ming of payment to be made in the ordinary course of the Group's  ac!vi!es. Al l  financial  l iabi l i!es  are
payable in the short term (between 0 to 3 months) and the Group maintains  adequate bank balances  to meet those
l iabi l i ties .

The Group makes  a l lowances  for impairment of receivables  where there is  an EC L iden!fied. Refer to Note 22 for detai ls  of
the intercompany loan ECL assessment.

The credit risk on cash is  cons idered to be l imited because the counterpar!es  are financial  ins!tu!ons with high and good
credit ratings  ass igned by international  credit rating agencies  in the UK.

The carrying amount of financial  assets , trade receivables  and cash held with financial  ins!tu!ons recorded in the
financial  s tatements  represents  the exposure to credit risk for the Group.

At Company level , there is  the risk of impairment of inter-company receivables  i f the ful l  amount is  not deemed as
recoverable from the relevant subs idiary company. These amounts  are wri3en down when their deemed recoverable
amount is  deemed less  than the current carrying value. An IFRS 9 assessment has  been carried out as  per Note 1.

Market risk

i)      Currency risk

Currency risk refers  to the risk that fluctuations  in foreign currencies  cause losses  to the Company.

The Group's  opera!ons are predominantly in S lovenia. Foreign exchange risk arises  from trans la!ng the euro earnings ,
assets  and l iabi l i!es  of the Ascent Resources  doo and Ascent S lovenia Limited into sterl ing. The Group manages  exposures
that arise from receipt of monies  in a  non-functional  currency by matching receipts  and payments  in the same currency.

The Company oKen raises  funds  for future development through the issue of new shares  in sterl ing. These funds  are
predominantly to pay for the Company's  explora!on costs  abroad in euros. As  such any sterl ing balances  held are at risk
of currency fluctua!ons and may prove to be insufficient to meet the Company's  planned euro requirements  i f there is
devaluation.

The Group's  and Company's  exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the repor!ng period is  summarised below. Al l
amounts  are presented in GBP equivalent.

Group Compa ny
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Tra de  a nd othe r re ce i va bl e s - - - -
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 29 9 6 7
Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s (314) (277) - 2
Net exposure (285) (268) 6 9

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Group is  mainly exposed to the currency of the European Union (the euro).

The Group operates  interna!onal ly and is  exposed to currency risk on sales , purchases, borrowings  and cash and cash
equivalents  that are denominated in a  currency other than sterl ing. The currencies  giving rise to this  are the euro.

Foreign exchange risk arises  from transactions  and recognised assets  and l iabi l i ties .

The Group does  not use foreign exchange contracts  to hedge i ts  currency risk.

Sensitivity analysis
The fol lowing table detai ls  the Group's  sens i!vity to a  10% increase and decrease in sterl ing against the stated currencies .
10% is  the sens i!vity rate used when repor!ng foreign currency risk internal ly to key management personnel  and
represents  the management's  assessment of the reasonably poss ible change in foreign exchange rates . The sens i!vity
analys is  comprises  cash and cash equivalents  held at the balance sheet date. A pos i!ve number below indicates  an
increase in profi t and other equity where sterl ing weakens 10% against the relevant currency.

 

 

 Euro curre ncy cha nge

Group
Ye a r e nde d

31 De ce mbe r 2022
Ye a r e nde d

31 De ce mbe r 2021
Profit or loss
10% s tre ngthe ni ng of s te rl i ng 124 40
10% we a ke ni ng of s te rl i ng (151) (48)



Equity
10% s tre ngthe ni ng of s te rl i ng 69 (3,598)
10% we a ke ni ng of s te rl i ng (85) 4,398

Company
Profit or loss
10% s tre ngthe ni ng of s te rl i ng - -
10% we a ke ni ng of s te rl i ng - -
 
Equity
10% s tre ngthe ni ng of s te rl i ng - (3,045)
10% we a ke ni ng of s te rl i ng - 3,722

 

ii)     Interest rate risk

I nterest rate risk refers  to the risk that fluctua!ons in interest rates  cause losses  to the Company. The Group and Company
have no exposure to interest rate risk except on cash and cash equivalent which carry variable interest rates . The Group
carries  low units  of cash and cash equivalents  and the Group and Companies  monitor the variable interest risk
accordingly.

At 31 December 2022, the Group and Company has  GBP  loans  valued at £521,000 rates  of 8% per annum. At 31 December
2021, the Group and Company had GBP loans  valued at £536,000 rates  of 8% per annum.

 

iii)    Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers  to the risk that the Company has  insufficient cash resources  to meet working capital  requirements .

The Group and Company manages  i ts  l iquidity requirements  by us ing both short- and long-term cash flow projec!ons and
raises  funds  through debt or equity placings  as  required. Ul!mate responsibi l i ty for l iquidity risk management rests  with
the Board of Directors , which has  bui l t an appropriate l iquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Group's  short-, medium- and long-term funding and l iquidity management requirements .

The Group closely monitors  and manages  i ts  l iquidity risk. Cash forecasts  are regularly produced, and sens i!vi!es  run for
different scenarios  (see Note 1). For further detai ls  on the Group's  l iquidity pos i!on, please refer to the Going Concern
paragraph in Note 1 of these accounts .

Group Compa ny

Categorisation of Borrowings - Group
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
2022

£'000s
2021

£'000s
Le s s  tha n s i x months  - l oa ns  a nd borrowi ngs - - - -
Le s s  tha n s i x months  - tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s - - - -
Be twe e n s i x months  a nd a  ye a r - - - -
Ove r one  ye a r 516 536 516 536

Capital management

The Group manages  i ts  capital  to ensure that i t wi l l  be able to con!nue as  a  going concern whi le maximis ing the return to
shareholders  through the op!misa!on of the balance between debt and equity. The Group reviews the capital  s tructure on
an on-going bas is . As  part of this  review, the directors  cons ider the cost of capital  and the risks  associated with each class
of capital . The Group wi l l  balance i ts  overal l  capital  s tructure through new share issues  and the issue of new debt or the
repayment of existing debt.

There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

Fair value of financial instruments

Set in the foregoing is  a  comparison of carrying amounts  and fa ir values  of the Group's  and the Company's  financial
instruments:

Categorisation of Financial Assets and Liabilities - Group

Carrying amount
Year ended 31

December
2022

Fair Value Year
ended 31

December
2022

Carrying amount
Year ended 31

December
2021

Fair Value
Year ended 31

December
2021

Financial assets
Ca s h a nd e qui va l e nts  - unre s tri cte d 325 325 97 97
Ca s h a nd e qui va l e nts  - re s tri cte d - - - -
Tra de  re ce i va bl e s 11 11 8 8
Pre pa i d a ba ndonme nt fund (re funda bl e ) 300 300 300 300

Financial liabilities
Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s 599 599 771 771
Loa ns  a t fi xe d ra te 516 516 536 536

 

Capital management - Company

Carrying amount
Year ended 31

December
2022

Fair Value Year
ended 31

December
2022

Carrying amount
Year ended 31

December
2021

Fair Value
Year ended 31

December
2021

Financial assets
Ca s h a nd e qui va l e nts  - unre s tri cte d 302 302 88 88
Tra de  re ce i va bl e s 26 26 28 28

Financial liabilities
Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s 283 283 493 493
Loa ns  a t fi xe d ra te 516 516 536 536

Convertible loan at fixed rate

Fair value of conver!ble loans  has  been determined based on !er 3 measurement techniques. The fa ir value is  es!mated at
the present value of future cash flows, discounted at es!mated market rates . Fair value is  not s ignificantly different from
carrying value.

Trade and other receivables/payables and inter-company receivables

Al l  trade and other receivables  and payables  have a remaining l i fe of less  than one year. The ageing profile of the Group



Al l  trade and other receivables  and payables  have a remaining l i fe of less  than one year. The ageing profile of the Group
and Company receivable and payables  are shown in Notes  13, 14, 14, 18 and 19.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents  are a l l  readi ly avai lable and therefore carrying value represents  a  close approxima!on to fa ir
value.

 

27.  Commitments and contingencies

O n 10 March 2021, the Company announced that i ts  JV Service P rovider, Petro Geo, i ssued a local  enforcement order
a3emp!ng to cla im payment for an unsubstan!ated amount of €662,288 plus  interest of €12,103. Post the period under
review the Company settled this  dispute with Petrol  Geo settl ing a l l  outstanding invoices  from 2019 to February 2023.

Decommiss ioning costs  for the Petišovci  Project are estimated to be €9m, cons isting of €0.5m for each of the 16

proposed wel ls  plus  an additional  €1m for pipes  and related infrastructure. Decommiss ioning costs  become payable at

the end of a  wel ls  operational  l i fe and a provis ion for decommiss ioning costs  i s  made only when a wel l  i s  put into

production. The estimate for pipes  and infrastructure is  based on al l  wel ls  being put into operation. With the change in

the Slovenian mining law in in Apri l  2022 creating a  ban on hydraul ic stimulation, further development of the

concess ion is  uncertain as  i s  the development of additional  wel ls . A provis ion of £663,000 (Note 16) has  been made for

the decommiss ioning of the PG10 and PG11A wel ls  that are currently in production and represents  the Group's  share of

the restoration costs  for the Petišovci  field.

 
Publication of the Annual Report

The Company confirms that the Company's annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
"Annual Report") will be published to shareholders and will be on the Company's website shortly.
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RNS may use your IP address to confirm compliance with the terms and conditions, to analyse how you engage with the information contained in this
communication, and to share such analysis on an anonymised basis with others as part of our commercial services. For further information about how
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